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NOTICE TO MEMBERS 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 32ND (THIRTY SECOND) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) OF THE 

ZENLABS ETHICA LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON MONDAY, THE 29th DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2025 AT 12:00 P.M. 

AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY SITUATED AT PLOT NO. 194-195, 3RD FLOOR, INDUSTRIAL 

AREA, PHASE II, RAM DARBAR, CHANDIGARH-160002, TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS: 
 

 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 
Item no. 1 – To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year 
ended March 31, 2025 together with the Report of the Board of Directors and the Statutory Auditors thereon, and 

 
Item no. 2 – To re-appoint Mrs. Himjyoti (DIN: 02398927), who retires by rotation in terms of Section 152 
(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. 

 
 

 
On behalf of the Board 

For ZENLABS ETHICA LIMITED 
 
 
 

 
Sd/- 

Date: September 04, 2025 Manju Bala 
Place: Chandigarh Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

M. No. A67831 
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NOTES: 

 
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the "Meeting") is entitled to appoint a 

proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of himself/herself and such proxy need not be a member of the 
Company. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50 (fifty) and holding in the 
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member 
holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a 
single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. 

 
The instrument of proxy as enclosed with the notice, in order to be effective, should be deposited at the 
registered office of the Company not less than Forty-Eight (48) hours before the commencement of the 
Meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies etc., must be supported by appropriate 
resolutions/ authority, as applicable. 

 
2. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the Annual General 

Meeting and until the conclusion of the meeting, a member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged 
during the business hours of the company provided that not less than three days of notice in writing is given 
to the company. 

 
3. Please bring your copy of the annual report to the meeting as the Company would not provide, as a measure 

of austerity, any copy at the venue of the Annual General Meeting. 
 

4. In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per 
the Register of Members of the Company as on the cut-off date will be entitled to vote during the meeting. 

 
5. All documents referred to in the notice along with Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel & 

Shareholding and Register of Contracts and Arrangements in which Directors are interes ted are open for 
inspection by the members at the registered office of the Company on all working days, during business hours 
up to the date of the Annual General Meeting and at the venue of meeting. 

 
6. Members seeking any information with regard to the financial statements or any matter to be placed at the 

meeting are requested to write to the Company, at least ten (10) days before the meeting through e-mail on 
zenlabsethicaltd2019@gmail.com, and the same will be suitably replied by the Company. 

 
7. In accordance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 

dated May 12, 2020, SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021, 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022, SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated 
January 5, 2023 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated October 07, 2023 issued by Securities 
Exchange Board of India (collectively referred to as “SEBI Circulars”), the Notice of the 32nd Annual General 
Meeting along with the Annual Report for financial year 2024-25 is being sent by electronic mode to those 
members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories.  

 
If your e-mail address is not registered with the Company/ Depositories, you may receive the Notice of the 
32ndAnnual General Meeting along with the Annual Report for financial year 2024-25 by completing the 
process for registration of e-mail address as under: 

 
I. Those shareholders who have registered/not registered their e-mail address or registered an 

incorrect e-mail address and mobile numbers including address and bank details may please 
contact and validate/update their details with the Depository Participant in case of shares held in 
electronic form and with M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited, Registrar & Share Transfer Agent 
of the Company (“RTA”) in case the shares are held in physical form. 

 
II. Shareholders who have or registered an incorrect email address and in consequence the Annual 

Report, Notice of AGM and e-voting notice could not be serviced, may also temporarily get their 

email address and mobile number registered with the Company’s RTA, by clicking the link: 

www.Bigshareonline.com for sending the Annual Report, Notice of AGM and e-voting notice. 

mailto:zenlabsethicaltd2019@gmail.com
http://www.bigshareonline.comfor/
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8. Members can avail of the facility of nomination in respect of shares held by them in physical form, if any,  
pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013. Members desiring to avail this facility may send their 
nomination in the prescribed Form SH-13 in duplicate, duly filled in, to the R&T agent at the address mentioned at 
point no. 9 in the Notes. The prescribed form in this regard may also be obtained from the R&T agent at the 
address mentioned at point no. 9 in the Notes. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to 
contact their Depository Participants directly for recording their nomination. 

The Company’s Registrars & Transfer Agents for its share registry is M/s Bigshare Services Private Limited 
Office No S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East) 
Mumbai 400093, Maharashtra, INDIA 

9. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email address, 
telephone/mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, 
bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc. 

 
a. For shares held in electronic form: to their Depository Participants (DPs) 
b. For shares held in physical form: to the Company/Registrar and Transfer Agents (RTA) in prescribed 

Form ISR-1 and other forms pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD- 
1/P/CIR/2023/37 dated March 16, 2023. In the absence of any of the required documents in a folio, on 
or after October 1, 2023, the folio shall be frozen by the RTA.  

The Company’s Registrars & Transfer Agents for its share registry is M/s Bigshare Services Private 
Limited Office No S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, 
Andheri (East) Mumbai 400093, Maharashtra, INDIA 

 
10. Members may note that the Notice of the 32ndAnnual General Meeting along with the Annual Report for 

financial year 2024-25 will also be available on website of the Company on the weblink 
https://zenlabsethica.com, website of the Stock Exchanges i.e., BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and on the 
website of the CDSL evoting@cdsl.co.in 

 
11. Non-resident Indian shareholders are requested to inform about the following to the Company and its 

Share Transfer Agent or the concerned depository Participant, as the case may be, immediately of: 
a) The change in the residential status on return to India for permanent settlement. 
b) The particulars of the NRE Account with a Bank in India, if not furnished earlier. 

 
12. Entry to the venue will be strictly regulated by the attendance slip which is annexed to the proxy form. 

Members are requested to produce the attendance slip duly signed along with photo identity proof i.e., PAN 
Card / Aadhar Card/ Driving License / Passport Copy, if any, at the entrance of venue. 

 
13. Members, who hold shares in: 

a. Multiple DE-MAT accounts and/ or 
b. One or more folios in physical form are advised to consolidate their holdings in single DE-MAT account. 

 
14. Members are requested to correspond with RTA for all matters relating to shareholding in the Company. 

 
 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS VOTING ELECTRONICALLY ARE AS UNDER: 
 

In compliance with Section 108 of the Act, read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time 
being in force) and Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations, and in terms of SEBI Circular no. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 in relation to “e-voting Facility Provided by 
Listed Entities”, the Members are provided with the facility to cast their vote electronically, through the e- 
voting services provided by the Central Depository Services (India) Ltd (CDSL) all the resolutions set forth in 
this Notice. The facility for voting will also be made available at the AGM and members attending the AGM, 
who have not already cast their votes by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the AGM. 

 
Members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may attend the AGM but shall not be 
entitled to cast their votes again. The instructions for e-voting are annexed to the Notice. 

 
(i) The remote e-voting period begins on the Friday 26th day of September, 2025 (9.00 a.m. IST) and ends on 

Sunday, the 28th day of September, 2025 (5.00 p.m. IST). During this period, shareholders of the 
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut- off date Monday 
the 22nd September, 2025 (Record Date), may cast their vote electronically.  

 
(ii) The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast 

by the member, he shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. Members have the option to cast their 

http://www.bseindia.com/
mailto:evoting@cdsl.co.in
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vote on any of the resolutions using the remote e-voting facility, Members who have voted on some of the 

resolutions during the said voting period are also eligible to vote on the remaining resolutions during the 

AGM. 

 
(iii) A person who is not a member as on cut-off date i.e., Monday, 22nd September, 2025, should treat this 

Notice for information purpose only. 

(iv) A person, whose name is recorded in the register of Members or in the register of beneficial owners 

maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date, viz., Monday, the 22nd September, 2025, only shall 

be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting at the AGM through electronic voting 

system. 

 
(v) The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share capital of 

the company as on the cut-off date (record date) Monday, the 22nd September, 2025. 

 
(vi) Since the company is required to provide members the facility to cast their vote by electronic means, 

shareholders of the company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the 

cut-off date and not casting their vote electronically, may cast their vote at the AGM venue. Facility will be 

available at the venue. 

 
(vii) The company has appointed CS Nitika Goel, Practicing Company Secretary, M/s BND & Associates 

(CP No. - 27061 ) as the scrutinizer for conducting the e-voting process in a fair and transparent 

manner. The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s report shall be communicated to the stock 

exchanges, NSDL/CDSL and RTA, and will also be displayed on the Company’s website, 

www.zenlabsethica.com. 

 
(viii) The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding two (2) working days from the conclusion of the e- 

voting period, unblock the votes in the presence of at least two witnesses not in employment of the 

Company and make a Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes cast in favor or against, if any, forthwith to the 

Chairman of the Company. 

 
(ix) Institutional shareholders (i.e., other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 

(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature 

of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 

nitikagoel178@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@cdsl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e., 

other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / 

Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e- 

Voting" tab in their login. 

 
(x) Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders, who acquires shares of the 

Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and holding shares as of the 

cut-off date, may obtain the User ID and Password by sending a request at evoting@cdsl.co.in. However, if 

he/ she is already registered with CDSL for remote e-voting then he/she can use his/her existing User ID 

and Password for casting the vote. In case of individual shareholders holding securities in dematerialized 

mode and who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of 

the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date may follow steps mentioned below under “Login 

method for remote e-voting and joining virtual meeting for individual shareholders holding securities in 

dematerialized mode. 

 
(xi) Voting will be provided to the members through e-voting and/or at the AGM venue by ballot paper. A 

member can opt for only one mode of voting i.e., either through e-voting or voting at the AGM. If a member 

cast votes by both modes, then voting done through e-voting shall prevail and the voting at AGM shall be 

treated as invalid. 

http://www.zenlabsethica.com/
mailto:nitikagoel178@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@cdsl.co.in
mailto:evoting@cdsl.co.in
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(xii) The details of the process and manner for remote e-voting / e-voting is explained herein below: 
 

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e- 

Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 

are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 

Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts 

in order to access e-Voting facility. 

However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders /retail 

shareholders is at a negligible level.  

 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

 
Type of 
shareholders 

Login Method 

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat 
mode with CDSL 
Depository. 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 

through their existing user id and password. Option will be made 

available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. 

The users to login to Easi / Easiest are requested to visit cdsl website 

www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System My Easi 

New(Token) Tab. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e 

Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress 

as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting 

option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting 

service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting 

Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e 

Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting 

service providers’ website directly. 

 
3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 

available at cdsl website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New 

System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.  

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting 
link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email 
as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, 
user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in 
progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting 
Service Providers. 

http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with 
NSDL Depository 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e 

Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile 

Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficia 

Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new 

screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After 

successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on 

“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e 

Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and 

you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

 
2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 

available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS 

“Portal or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with 
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDLDepository 
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service 
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

4) For OTP based login you can click on 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You will 
have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., Verification code 
and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered email id/mobile 
number and click on login. After successful authentication, you will be 
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click 
on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re- 
directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. 

Individual shareholders 
(Holding securities in 
demat mode) login 
through their Depository 
Participants 

I. You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 
your DP registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-voting facility. 

II. Once logged-in, you will be able to see e-voting option. Once you click on e- 
voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after 
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-voting feature. 

III. Click on Company name or e-voting service provider name and you will be 
redirected to e-voting service provider website for casting your vote during 
the remote e-voting period 

 
Note: Members who are unable to retrieve user ID/password areadvised to use Forgot user ID and Forgot password option 

available at respective websites. 

 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to 

login through Depository i.e., CDSL and NSDL 
 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 
sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 
18002109911 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk b 
sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in  or call at: 022-48867000 
and 022- 24997000 

 
(xiii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 

http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
http://www.evotingindia.com/
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(xiv) Click on “Shareholders” module. 

 
(xv) Now Enter your User ID 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company. 

(xvi) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

 
(xvii) If you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an 

earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

 
(xviii) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

 
 For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in 

Demat. 

PAN Enter your 10- digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for 

both Demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 

Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or 

contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend 

Bank Details 

OR 

Date of 

Birth 

(DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in 

your Demat account or in the company records in order to login.  

 
 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the 

member id/folio number in the Dividend Bank details field. 

 
(xix) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 
(xx) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, 

members holding shares in Demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are 

required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this 

password is to be also used by the Demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which 

they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly 

recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 

password confidential. 

 
(xxi) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions 

contained in this Notice. 

 
(xxii) Click on the EVSN (250829051) for the relevant ZENLABS ETHICA LIMITED on which you choose to 

vote. 

(xxiii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” 

for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution 

and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

 
(xxiv) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

 
(xxv) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be 

displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and 

accordingly modify your vote. 

 
(xxvi) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

http://www.evotingindia.com/
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(xxvii) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the 

Voting page. 

(xxviii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then enter the User ID and the image 

verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.  

(xxix) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made available to scrutinizer 
for verification. 

 
(xxx) Additional Facility for Non-Individuals Shareholders and Custodians for Remote E-voting only. 

 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e., other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required 

to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates. 

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed 

to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 After receiving the login details a compliance user should be created using the admin login and 

password. The Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 

 The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case of any 

wrong mapping. 

 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favor 

of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify 

the same. 

 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ 

Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who 

are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; 

secretarial@zenlabsethica.com (designated email address by company), if they have voted from 

individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become Member of the Company after dispatch 

of the Notice and holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e., 22nd September, 2025 may follow the 

same instructions as mentioned above for e-Voting. 

 
PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 
COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 

 
1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy 
of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id.  

 
2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP) 

 
3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective 
Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through 
Depository. 

In case if you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions 
(“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. Or Contact at toll free no. 18002109911. 

 

 
15. The shareholders can also access the Annual Report 2024-25 of the Company circulated to the Members of 

the Company and other information about the Company on Company’s website, i.e., 
www.zenlabsethica.com 

 
16. Members are requested to come and occupy their seats at least 15 minutes before commencement of 32 nd 

Annual General Meeting. Due to security reasons, note that briefcase/ bags/eatables/ electronic gadgets such 
as a mobile, laptop, camera, etc., will NOT be allowed along with members/proxies in the 32 nd Annual General 
Meeting venue during meeting hours. In case any member/proxy brings electronic gadgets or other items 
mentioned above the same has to be deposited with security outside the 32nd AGM venue at the owners’ risk. 

 
17. Members who are holding shares in identical order of names in more than one folio are requested to write to 

the Company requesting the Company to consolidate their holdings in one folio. 

http://www.evotingindia.com/
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:secretarial@zenlabsethica.com
http://www.evotingindia.com/
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
http://www.zenlabsethica.com/
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18. As per Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Secretarial Standards for General Meeting 

Issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India “NO GIFTS, GIFT COUPONS OR CASH IN LIEU OF GIFTS 
SHALL BE DISTRIBUTED TO MEMBERS AT OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE 32ND ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING”. 

 
19. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account 

Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, 
therefore, requested to submit PAN to their depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their 
demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to submit their PAN to the RTA of the 
Company. 

 
20. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company 

of any change in address or of staying abroad or demise of any member as soon as possible.  Members are 
also advised not to leave their Demat accounts dormant for long. Periodical statement of holdings should be 
obtained from the concerned Depository Participants and holdings should be verified.  

 
21. The attendance slip and route map showing prominent landmark is annexed to the notice. The route map has 

been uploaded on the website of the Company. 
 

 
On behalf of the Board 

For ZENLABS ETHICA LIMITED 
 
 
 

Sd/- 
Date: 04th September, 2025 Manju Bala 

Place: Chandigarh Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
M. No. A67831 
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THE DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT, PERTAINING TO THE ITEM NO.  2 OF THE NOTICE 

DETAILS OF DIRECTOR SEEKING SHAREHOLDERS APPROVAL FOR APPOINTMENT PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36(3) OF 

THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 READ WITH CLAUSE 1.2.5 

OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD SS- 2 ON GENERAL MEETINGS. 

 

Name Mrs. Himjyoti 

Directors Identification Number (DIN) 02398927 

Date of Birth 21-06-1972 

Age 53 Years 

Original Date of Appointment 25/03/2015 

Education Qualification Master Of Pharmacy (M. Pharma) 

Experience/ Experience in special functional 
area 

Mrs. Himjyoti, aged 53 Years is a Woman director having 
more than 12 years of experience in Pharmaceuticals 
Industries. Mrs. Him Jyoti is a dedicated and hard-working 
entrepreneur. 

Terms and conditions of appointment/ re- 

appointment. 

Mrs. Himjyoti, retires by rotation and being eligible as confirmed by 
her, offers herself for re-appointment. 

List of Directorship held in other 

Companies. 
1. Quadriga Biotech Private Limited 

Relationship with other Directors, 

Managers and KMPs 

Wife of Mr. Sanjay Dhir, Whole-Time Director and Promoter of the 
Company. 

No. of Board Meetings attended during 

Financial Year 2024-25 

6 

Chairmanships/Memberships of the 

Committee of the Board of Directors of the 

Company 

1. Chairman and Member of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee. 

2. Member of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee 

Chairmanships/Memberships of the 

Committee of the Board of Directors of other 

Public Limited Companies including Listed 

Companies 

Nil 

Listed Entities from which the director has 

resigned in the past 3 years. 

Nil 

No. of shares held in the Company 1000 

 

 
On behalf of the Board 

For ZENLABS ETHICA LIMITED 
 

 
Sd/- 

Date: 04th September, 2025 Manju Bala 
Place: Chandigarh Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

M. No. A67831 
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Board’s Report 

 
Dear Shareholders, 

 

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the 32nd Annual Report on the business and operations of 

your Company along with the audited statement of accounts and the Auditors’ Report for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2025. The highlights of the financial results for the year under review are given below: 

 
 1. FINANCIAL RESULTS:  

 
The Company’s financial and operational performance for the year ended March 31, 2025 is summarized 

below: 

(Rs. in Lakh) 
 

PARTICULARS 2024-25 2023-24 

Operating Income 5142.25 5856.31 

Other Income 4.80 29.92 

Total Income 5147.05 5886.23 

Less: Total Expenditure 5104.25 5828.08 

Profit before tax 42.79 58.15 

Less: Provision for Tax 15.87 16.03 

Profit after tax 26.92 42.12 

Other Comprehensive Income 3.27 (0.17) 

Total Comprehensive Income/expenses 
for the year 

30.19 41.95 

Balance of profit /loss for earlier years 361.30 319.35 

Balance carried forward 391.50 361.30 

Earning per equity share (nominal value 
of shares Rs. 10 each) 

  

Basic 0.41 0.65 

Diluted 0.41 0.65 
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Your company is one of the leading marketing companies, which is trading in wide range of branded drugs 

including GIT disorders, Anti-Diabetics, Anti-Hypertensive Drugs, Anti-Infective, Soaps & Anti-Bacterial 

Drugs, Nutraceuticals and more. Zenlabs Ethica Limited corporate sustainability is demonstrated through 

(a) fair, transparent and ethical governance, 

(b) engagement with marginalized and vulnerable communities, 

(c) adherence to and respect for all human rights, 

(d) reduction of impact of its operations on the environment and 

(e) promotion of employee well-being and safety. 

 
In last three years, your company has optimized its business models, reshaped its portfolio, and expanded 

its footprint to strengthen its competitive position in key geographies. Throughout the pandemic, your 

company has up scaled our capabilities to ensure widespread availability of quality medicines. Your 

Company is committed to investing in talent tonurture an agile, innovation, and excellence-focused culture. 

 
Management discussion and analysis report attached as Annexure-D to the Director’s Report provides 

detailed analysis of the State of the Company’s Affair, including the future prospects for the Company.  

 

 
During the financial year 2024-25 the Company has transferred INR 26.92 Lakh (Profit after tax) to the 

General Reserves. 

 

The Board of Directors of your company, after considering holistically the relevant circumstances, has 

decided that it would be prudent, not to recommend any Dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 

2025. 

 

 
During the year under review, there has been no change in the authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-up 

share capital share capital of the Company. 

 
As on 31st March 2025, the authorized share capital of the Company is Rs. 20,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty 

Crore Only) divided into 2,00,00,000 (Two Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each and paid-up 

share capital is Rs. 6,51,00,150 (Rupees Six Crore Fifty-One Lakhs One Hundred Fifty only) divided into 

65,10,015 (Sixty-Five Lakhs Ten Thousand Fifteen only) equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each. 

 
The detailed break-up of the share capital is furnished in Note-15 to the ‘Notes to Accounts’ of the Audited 

Financial Statements of the Company. 

 

 
The Annual Return of the Company as on March 31, 2025 in Form MGT – 7 in accordance with Section 92(3) 

and Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act ,2013 as amended from time to time and the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, will be made available on the website of the Company at 

https:// www.zenlabsethica.com. 

2. THE STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS: 

3. TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 

4. DIVIDEND: 

5. CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL, IF ANY: 

6. ANNUAL RETURN: 

http://www.zenlabsethica.com/
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 7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY:  

a) Composition of the Board of the Directors 

The Board of Directors of the Company has an optimum combination of Executive, Non-Executive 

and Independent Directors. The composition of the Board is in conformity with Section 149 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. The Board of Directors comprised of 5 (five) Directors as on March 31, 2025. 

The names of the directors, their DIN, category of their directorship along with other relevant 

details are given hereunder: - 

 
Name of the Director DIN Designation Category 
Mr. Sanjeev Singal 01154896 Managing Director Promoter 
Mr. Sanjay Dhir 02452461 Whole-time Director Promoter 
Mrs. Himjyoti 02398927 Non-Executive 

Director 
Promoter 
Group 

Mr. Anurag Malhotra 07552713 Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director 

Non 
promoter 

Mr. Kuldeep Singh 08454422 Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director 

Non- 
promoter 

b) Meeting and attendance 
During the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, the Board met 6 (Six) times during the year 

under review. The details of such meetings are given below. The maximum interval between any 

two meetings did not exceed 120 days, as prescribed by the Act. The Attendance of the Directors at 

the Board Meetings are as under: 

 
 
 
 

 
Board Meeting 

M
r

. S
a

n
ja

y
 D

h
ir

 

M
r

. S
a

n
je

e
v

 S
in

g
a

l 

M
r

s
. 

H
im

jy
o

ti
 

M
r.

 K
u

ld
e

e
p

 S
in

g
h

 

M
r.

 A
n

u
ra

g
 M

al
h

o
tr

a
 

20th May 2024 P P P P P 

10th June 2024 P P P P P 

07th August 2024 P P P P P 

04thSeptember 2024 P P P P P 

12th November 2024 P A P P P 

07th February 2025 P P P P P 

c) Directors retiring by rotation 

 
In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mrs. 

Himjyoti, Director, is due to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being 

eligible, has offered herself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors on the recommendation of 

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) has recommended his re-appointment. 

Resolution seeking her re-appointment along-with her profile as required under Regulation 36(3) 

of the Listing Regulations forms part of the Notice of 32nd Annual General Meeting. 
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d) Directors / Key Managerial Personnel appointed / resigned during the financial year under 
review and up to the date of this report: 

 
During the period under review following changes took place in the composition of Board of directors 
and Key Managerial Personnel of company: 

 
Name DIN/PAN Designation Date of 

appointment 
/ change in 
designation 
/cessation 

Nature of 
change 

Mr. Kuldeep 
Singh 

08454422 Non–Executive 
Independent Director 

10/06/2024 Re-appointment 

Mr. Akshay 
Saxena 

HFJPS0054F Company Secretary and 
Compliance officer 

19/07/2024 Cessation 

Ms. Manju 
Bala 

GBCPB1173G Company Secretary and 
Compliance officer 

07/08/2024 Appointment 

Mr. Sanjeev 
Singal 

01154896 Managing Director 01/09/2024 Re-appointment 

After the closure of financial year and before the date of signing of Board report following changes took 
place in the Key Managerial Personnel of company: 

 

Name DIN/PAN Designation Date of 
appointment/ 

change in 
designation 
/cessation 

Nature of 
change 

Mr. Sanjay Dhir 02452461 Whole Time Director 01/04/2025 Re-appointment 

 
e) Declaration of Independent Directors: 

 
The Independent Directors of your Company have submitted requisite declarations that  they 

continue to meet the criteria of Independence as laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 

2013 and Regulations 16(1) (b) and there is no change in the status of their Independence and have 
confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably 

anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties. 

 
The Independent Directors of your Company are in compliance with the requirements under Rule 6 

of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).  

 
The Board of Directors further confirms that the Independent Directors also meet the criteria of 

expertise, experience, integrity and proficiency in terms of Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 (as amended). 
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f) Independent Directors Meeting and Board Evaluation 

 
In order to ensure that the Board and Board Committees are functioning effectively and to comply 

with the statutory requirements, the annual performance evaluation of the Board, Board Committees 

and individual Directors was conducted during the year. The evaluation was carried out based on the 

criterion and framework approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee pursuant to the 

provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations.  

 
The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the Directors 

on the basis of criteria such as the board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, 

information and functioning, etc. 

 
The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the 

committee members on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of 
committee meetings, etc. 

 
In a separate meeting of Independent Directors held on January 01, 2025, performance of Non- 

Independent Directors, the Board as a whole and Chairman of the Company was evaluated, taking 
into account the views of executive directors and non-executive directors. 

 
At the board meeting that followed the meeting of the Independent Directors and meeting of 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the performance of the Board, its committees, and 

individual Directors was also discussed. Performance evaluation of independent directors was done 
by the entire Board, excluding the Independent Director being evaluated.  

 
 8. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:  

 
a) Audit Committee: 

 
The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Section 177 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder. The Committee comprises of members 

who possess financial and accounting expertise/exposure.  

During the year under review, Meetings of the Audit Committee were held as follows: 
 

Meeting 01st Meeting 02nd Meeting 03rd Meeting 04th Meeting 
Date 20-05-2024 07-08-2024 12-11-2024 07-02- 2025 

 
Composition of the Committee and details of attendance of each Member at the Audit Committee 

Meetings are as follows: 

 
 

 
S. No. 

 

 
Name 

 

 
Designation 

Number of Meetings during 
the financial year 

2024-25 

Entitled to 
Attend 

Attended 

1 Mr. Kuldeep Singh 
(Chairman & Member) 

Independent Director 
Non-Executive 

4 4 

2 Mr. Anurag Malhotra 
(Member) 

Independent Director 
Non-Executive 

4 4 

3 Mr. Sanjay Dhir (Member) Executive Director 4 4 

 

 
The Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Internal Auditors, Statutory Auditors and other senior 

executives of the Company attended the Audit Committee Meetings as invitees. The Company 

Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit Committee. 
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b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
 

The composition, powers, role and terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee are in accordance with the requirements mandated under Section 178 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. Apart from the above, the Committee also carries out such functions/responsibilities 

entrusted on it by the Board of Directors from time to time.  

 
During the year under review, Meetings of the Committee were held as follows: 

 
Meeting 1st Meeting 2nd Meeting 3rd Meeting 4th Meeting 

Date 10-06-2024 19-07-2024 07-08-2024 04-09-2024 

 
Composition of NRC and details of attendance of the Members at Meetings of the Committee are as 

follows: 
 

 
Sr. No. 

 
Name 

Number of meetings during the 
financial year 2024-25 

Entitled to 
Attend 

Attended 

1 Mrs. Himjyoti 
(Chairman & Member) 

4 4 

2 Mr. Anurag Malhotra ( Member) 4 4 

3 Mr. Kuldeep Singh ( Member) 4 4 

c) Stakeholder Relationship Committee 
 

The composition, powers, role and terms of reference of the Committee are in accordance with the 
requirements mandated under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 
During the year under review, Meetings of the Committee were held as follows: 

 

MEETING 1ST MEETING 2ND MEETING 

Date 20-06-2024 30-10-2024 

The Composition of SRC and details of attendance of the Members at Meetings of the Committee are 

as follows: 
 

 
Sr. No. 

 
Name 

Number of meetings during 
the financial year 2024-25 

Entitled to 
Attend 

Attended 

1 Mr. Anurag Malhotra (Chairman & Member) 2 2 

2 Mr. Kuldeep Singh (Member) 2 2 

3 Mrs. Him jyoti (Member) 2 2 
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The Company’s Policy on Director’s appointment and remuneration and other matters provided in section 178(3) 

of the Companies Act, 2013 is available on the website of the Company and can be accessed at 

https://www.zenlabsethica.com/policies/. 

 

 
Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, and rules made thereunder, M/s. N Kumar Chhabra & Co.,  

Chartered Accountants, Chandigarh (Registration No.000837N), were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the 

Company in the 28th Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2021 to hold the office from the conclusion 

of the said Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 33rd Annual General Meeting to be held in year 

2026. 

 
Pursuant to 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant Rules prescribed thereunder, the Statutory Auditors 

have confirmed that they are not disqualified from continuing as Auditors of the Company.  

 
The Auditors have also confirmed that they have subjected themselves to the peer review process of Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of the ICAI.  

 
Statutory Auditor of the company have audited the accounts of your Company for the FY 2024-25 and their report 

is annexed together with the explanatory notes therein, which are self-explanatory and therefore, do not call for 

any further explanation or comments from the Board under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 
Pursuant to sub-section (3)(ca) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, it is further declared that no frauds 

have been reported by the Auditors under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013. The 

Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.  

 

 
Pursuant to Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable rules made thereunder, The Board of 

Directors appoint M/s Anu & Associates, Chartered Accountants as the Internal Auditors of your Company for 

the Financial Year 2025-26. 

 
The Internal Auditors have reviewed the design and operating effectiveness of various process covering the 

surveillance, operational, statutory compliances, business development, administrative, human resource, 

financial & accounting aspects of your Company. 

 
The Internal Auditors were satisfied with the management response on the observation and recommendations 

made by them during the course of their audit and have expressed satisfaction with the internal systems, controls 

and process followed by your Company. 

 

 
Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company had appointed M/s  

Jaspreet Dhawan & Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the 

Company for year ended March 31, 2025. 

 
The Report of the Secretarial Audit submitted by Jaspreet Dhawan & Associates is annexed herewith as 

Annexure - A. Further, the reply/ clarifications to the observations issued by the secretarial auditors is annexed 

as addendum with the report. 

9. POLICY ON DIRECTOR’S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION: 

10. STATUTORY AUDITORS: 

11. INTERNAL AUDITORS: 

12. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR & REPORT: 

http://www.zenlabsethica.com/policies/
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Pursuant to the Section 134(5) of Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of its knowledge 

and ability, confirm that: 

a. That in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standard had been followed 
along with proper explanation relating to material departures. 
b. That the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of 

affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the Profit of the Company for that Period. 

c. That the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenances of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provision of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.  
d. That the Directors have prepared the Annual accounts on a going concern basis. 
e. That the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such 
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.  
f. Proper systems are devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 
systems were adequate and operating effectively.  

 

 
As your Company is a trading company and not directly involved in any manufacturing activity, your 

Company is not directly involved in any Research and Development activities.  

 

The Company’s operations do not involve high consumption of energy. The company has taken adequate 
measures regarding conservation of energy. 

The details of the Foriegn Exchange earnings and outgo are given as the part to the Notes to Account of the 
Financial statement. 

 

Your Company had not invited any deposits from the public, and as such, no amount on account of principal 

or interest related thereto was outstanding as on the date of the Balance Sheet i.e., March 31, 2025. 

 

 
The ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median employee’s remuneration and other details in 

accordance with Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are forming part of this report as 

Annexure B. 

 

 
During the year under review, your Company has not announced any scheme for buy back of shares from 

its shareholders. 

 

 
The company falls under the exemption criteria as provided under Regulation 15(2)(a) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations & Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015 as the Paid-up capital of the company was below 

Rs. 10 Crores and net worth was below Rs. 25 Crores as on the last day of the previous financial year. 

 
As on 31st March, 2025, Company’s Paid-up Capital is of Rs. 6,51,00,150/- (Rupees Six Crore Fifty One Lakhs 

and One Hundred Fifty only) and Net worth INR 10,42,50,150/- (Indian Rupees Ten Crore Forty Two 

Lakh Fifty Thousand and One Hundred Fifty Only). 

13. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

14. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT: 

15. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGICAL ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

16. DEPOSITS: 

17. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

18. BUY BACK OF SHARES: 

19. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 
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Hence, compliance with Corporate Governance provisions as per Listing Obligations & Disclosure 

requirements (LODR) Regulations, 2015 are not applicable to company.  

 

 
The Board, pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the 

Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 has framed a “VIGIL MECHANISM”.  

 
Your Company believes in highest possible standards of ethical practices, moral and legal conduct of 

business operations and to maintain these standards, the Company encourages its Directors and employees 

to come forward and freely communicate their concerns about illegal or unethical practices/ behavior, 

actual or suspected, fraud or violation the appropriate authority so that timely and speedy investigations 

can be undertaken and corrective action could be taken if warranted. 

 
This mechanism has been framed with a view to enable stakeholders, including Directors, individual 

employees of the Company to freely communicate their concerns about illegal or unethical practices and to 

report genuine concerns or grievance as also to report to the management concerns about unethical 

behaviors, actual or suspected fraud. 

 
The framework provides for (a) adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use this 

Mechanism; and provides (b) direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee of the Board of 

Directors of the Company. 

 
Details of the VIGIL MECHANISM are made available on the Company’s website www.zenlabsethica.com. 

 

The Company has no subsidiary/Joint ventures/Associate Companies as per the provisions of Companies 

Act, 2013. Further, M/s Preet Remedies Limited holds 17,30,455 equity shares in M/s Zenlabs Ethica 

Limited. Therefore, our Company is associate company of M/s Preet Remedies Limited.  
 

 
None of the transactions with related parties entered by the Company during financial year under review, 

fall under the scope of Section 188(1) of the Act. Accordingly, the disclosure of related party transactions as 

required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act in Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company and hence does 

not form part of this report. 

The approval of the Audit Committee was sought for all transactions with related Parties’. Certain 

transactions which were repetitive in nature were approved through omnibus route.  

 

 
Your Company has, during the year under review, not given any loans, guarantees or provided security and 

has not made any investments in any body-corporate as specified under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 

2013. 

 

 
There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company between 

the end of the financial year i.e., March 31, 2025 and the date of this Report.  

 
Further, there is no change in the nature of the business of the Company. 

20. VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY: 

21. SUBSIDIARIES/ ASSOCIATES/JOINT VENTURES: 

22. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES: 

23. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 
186 OF THECOMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

24. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF 
THE COMPANY: 

http://www.zenlabsethica.com/
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The Company has adopted a Policy on Risk Management to ensure sustainable business growth with 

stability and to promote a pro-active approach in reporting, evaluating and resolving risks associated with 

the Company’s business. 

 
In order to achieve the key objective, this Policy establishes a structured and disciplined approach to Risk 

Management, in order to guide decisions on risk related issues.  

 
In addition to above, the Audit Committee of the Board has additional oversight in the area of financial risks 

and controls. Major risk identified by the business and functions are systematically addressed through 

mitigating actions on a continuous basis. 

 

 
During the year under review, there were no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts 

and no litigation was outstanding as on March 31, 2025, which would impact the going concern status and 

future operations of your Company. 

 

 
There are adequate systems of internal financial controls in the Company pursuant to provisions of Section 

134(q) read with Rule 8(5)(viii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The Board has adopted policies and 

procedures for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the companies 

Policies, the safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds, and accuracy of the accounting 

records and timely preparation of financial disclosures. 

 
The Company has appointed M/s Anu & Associates, Chartered Accountants, as Internal Auditors for the 

financial year 2024-25. 

 
The Internal Auditor monitors and evaluates the efficiency and adequacy of the internal control system in 

the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies of the Company. 

 
Based on the report of Internal Auditor, process owners undertake corrective action in their respective 

areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations and recommendations along with 

corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committees of the Board. 

 

 
The Provisions of Section 134(3)(o) and Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of 

Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 2014 regarding Corporate Social Responsibility do not apply to the Company 

for the period under review. 

 

 
Neither maintenance of cost records nor audit of cost records as required under Section 148 of the Act read 

with relevant rules made thereunder is applicable to the Company.  

 

 

 
In accordance with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013 (“POSH Act”), the Company has adopted a comprehensive internal policy to prevent and 
redress incidents of sexual harassment at the workplace.  

25. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: 

26. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR 
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS: 

27. STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL WITH 
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

28. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 

29. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS & COST AUDIT: 

30. DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARRASMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 
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This policy is applicable to all employees, irrespective of gender, designation, or employment status, and includes 
provisions for: 

 
 Constitution of an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) at each office/unit with ten or more employees, 

as mandated under Section 4 of the Act.  

 A clearly defined grievance redressal mechanism, enabling aggrieved women to file complaints directly 

with the ICC. 

 Provision for escalation to the Board of Directors or designated senior management, where appropriate. 
 

Regular awareness and sensitization programs to foster a safe and inclusive work environment. 
 

The Management and Board of Directors together confirm a total number of complaints received and resolved 
during the year is as follows: 

 
a) No. of Complaints received Nil 

b) No. of Complaints disposed Nil 

c) No. of cases pending for a period exceeding 90 days Nil 

 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report In terms of Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulation, 2015 read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations 2015 is annexed to this Board Report as Annexure C. 

 

During the year under review, your Company has duly complied with the applicable provisions of the 

Revised Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS2) 

issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).  

 

 
During the year under review, no Corporate Insolvency Resolution application was made or proceeding was 

initiated, by/against Zenlabs Ethica Limited under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 

2016 (as amended). Further, no application / proceeding by/against Zenlabs Ethica Limited under the 

provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (as amended) is pending as on March 31, 2025.  

 

 
Your directors would like to express their appreciation for assistance and co-operation received from the 

financial institutions, banks, Government authorities, customers, vendors and members during the year 

under review. Your directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the committed 

services by the executives, staff and workers of the Company. 

 

 
The Company is in full compliance with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 and rules made 

thereunder. The company ensures that all eligible women employees are granted maternity benefits 

including paid leave, protection against dismissal during maternity, and a safe working environment as 

prescribed under the Act. 

We further confirm that no woman employee is engaged in tasks that may be harmful during pregnancy, 

and the company is committed to upholding the rights and welfare of its women employees in accordance 

with the applicable laws. 

31. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT: 

32. STATEMENT REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 

33. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE 
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016): 

34. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME 
OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM 
THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF 

35.  STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE UNDER MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961 
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund (IEPF) Rules, all shares in respect of which dividends have remained unclaimed or 
unpaid for a period of seven consecutive years or more are mandatorily required to be transferred to the 
IEPF Authority. 

 
In compliance with the aforesaid provisions, during the financial year under review, the Company 
transferred an amount of ₹88,841/- pertaining to unpaid/unclaimed dividend for the financial year 2016– 
17 to the IEPF Authority. 

 

 

 
Our Company has been registered on Scores; the Company has received only one complaint during the 

Financial Year 2024-25.The status of investor complaints for the period from 01st April 2024 to 30th June 

2024 is as under: 

 
Category No of 

Complaints 

Received 

No of 

Complaints 

Resolved 

No of Complaints 

Pending 

SEBI 1 1 0 

 
Our Company makes every effort to resolve all investor complaints received through SCORES or 

otherwise within the statutory time limit from the receipt of the complaint.  

 

 
The Company has adopted Code of Conduct to regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by Designated 

Persons & Code of Practices and Procedures for fair disclosure of UPSI, in line with the provisions of the 

SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time. The Company 

Secretary is the Compliance Officer for monitoring adherence to the said regulations. The same is hosted 

on the website of the Company viz. https://www.zenlabsethica.com/ . 

 

 
The Company has ensured compliance with the Secretarial Standard I & II with respect to Board Meetings 

and General Meetings, specified by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India constituted under 

Section 3 of the Company Secretaries Act, 1980, and as approved by the Central Government under 

Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

36.  Transfer of Amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund 

37. SEBI Complaints Redressal System (SCORES) 

38. Prohibition of Insider Trading 

39. Statement of Compliance of Applicable Secretarial Standards 

https://www.zenlabsethica.com/
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The Board of Directors wishes to place on record its sincere appreciation for the continued support, 

guidance, and cooperation received from the regulatory bodies, and other statutory agencies. The Board 

also acknowledges with gratitude the support and trust extended by the Company’s stakeholders— 

shareholders, customers, dealers, suppliers, vendors, bankers, business associates, and partners, whose 

confidence has been integral to the Company’s performance and growth during the financial year under 

review. The Directors further express their deep appreciation for the dedication, commitment, and hard 

work of all employees across the organization. Their efforts have been crucial in navigating challenges 

and driving the Company’s progress. The Board remains confident of the continued goodwill, support,  

and partnership of all stakeholders in the years to come.  

 
 
 

 
For and on behalf of the Board 
ZENLABS ETHICA LIMITED 

 
 
 

 
 Sd/- Sd/- 
 Sanjeev Singal Sanjay Dhir 
Date: 4th September, 2025 Managing Director Whole-Time Director 
Place: Chandigarh DIN: 01154896 DIN: 02452461 

40.  ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
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Form No. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To, 

The Members, 

Zenlabs Ethica Limited 

CIN: L74900CH1993PLC033112 

Plot No. 194-195, 3rd Floor Industrial Area, 

Phase II, Ram Darbar Chandigarh-160002, India 

 
I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by Zenlabs Ethica Limited, CIN: L74900CH1993PLC033112 

(hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a 

reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion 

thereon. 

 
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 

other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, 

agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my 

opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025 

complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- 

processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 

made hereinafter: 

 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 

by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, according to the provisions of: 

 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the  

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) ; 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2018; (The provisions of the said regulations are not applicable to the Listed Entity 
during the review period). 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011; 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations 2018; (The 
provisions of the said regulations are not applicable to the Listed Entity during the review 
period). 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations, 2021; (The provisions of the said regulations are not applicable to the Listed Entity 
during the review period). 
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f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 
Regulations, 2021; (The provisions of the said regulations are not applicable to the Listed Entity 
during the review period). 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018; 
i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Practices 

relating to Securities Market) Regulations, 2003; 
j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (The 

provisions of the said regulations are not applicable to the Listed Entity during the review 
period). 

k) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Investor Protection and Education Fund) Regulations,2009; 
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

a) Secretarial Standards with regard to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings 
(SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India; 

 
b) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2015. 

 
c) Listing agreements entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited. 

 
d) During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.mentioned above except that: 
 
(i) the company was not in compliance with the Regulation 3(5) and 3(6) of Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading Regulation), 2015 (PIT Regulation), 
Names of all Designated Persons and UPSI disseminated thereof were not adequately 
captured in the database. 

 
(ii) the two Independent Directors of the company were not registered with the Independent 

Directors’ Databank as mandated under Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 read with Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
This constitutes a non-compliance with the statutory requirement applicable to Independent 
Directors. 

Based on our examination and the information received and records maintained, I further report that: 
 

1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There were no changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review. 

2. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent well in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 

 
3. As per the minutes, the decisions at the Board Meetings were taken unanimously. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the 
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines. 
 
I further report that that during the audit period no event occurred which had bearing on the Company’s 
affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc. 
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This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure – A and forms an 
integral part of this report. 

 
For Jaspreet Dhawan & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

 

 
Sd/- 

Jaspreet Singh Dhawan 

M. No. 9372 

Date: 04.09.2025 CP.NO: 8545 

Place: Mohali PR No. 1335/2021 

(UDIN: F009372G001115972) 
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‘Annexure-A’ 
 
To, 

The Members, 

Zenlabs Ethica Limited 

CIN: L74900CH1993PLC033112 

Plot No. 194-195, 3rd Floor Industrial Area, 

Phase II, Ram Darbar Chandigarh-160002, India 

 
My Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 
1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

 
2. I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was 
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. I believe that 

the process and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

 
3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the Company. 
 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of 
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc. 

 
5. Compliance with the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification 

of procedures on test basis. 

6. The compliance by the Company of the applicable financial laws like direct and indirect tax 
laws and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts has not been reviewed by me 

since the same have been subject to the review by statutory auditors and other professionals. 

 
7. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 

the Company. 

 
8. Due to inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating controls, there is 

an unavoidable risk that some misstatements or material non compliances may not be detected , 

even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with audit practices. 

 

 
For Jaspreet Dhawan & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

 

 
Sd/- 

Jaspreet Singh Dhawan 

M. No. 9372 

Date: 04.09.2025 CP.NO: 8545 

Place: Mohali PR No. 1335/2021 

(UDIN: F009372G001115972) 
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ADDENDUM TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT OF ZENLABS ETHICA LIMITED FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 ADDRESSING THE OBSERVATIONS MADE BY THE SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 

THERE UNDER 

 
THIS ADDENDUM IS BEING ISSUED TO PROVIDE MANAGEMENT’S CLARIFICATION AND RESPONSE TO 

THE OBSERVATIONS MADE BY THE SECRETARIAL AUDITOR IN THEIR REPORT AND TO OUTLINE 

CORRECTIVE ACTIONS TAKEN OR PROPOSED TO BE TAKEN. 

 
Ref 

No. 

Secretarial Auditor’s Observations Company’s Reply 

d (i) The company was not in compliance with the 

Regulation 3(5) and 3(6) of Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading 

Regulation), 2015 (PIT Regulation), Names of all 

Designated Persons and UPSI disseminated thereof 

were not adequately captured in the database. 

The names of all Designated Persons 

have been captured and the Company 

has assured adequacy in capturing 

requisite dissemination of UPSI in the 

database in future. 

d (ii) The two Independent Directors of the company 

were not registered with the Independent Directors’ 

Databank as mandated under Rule 6 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 

Directors) Rules, 2014 read with Section 149 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. This constitutes a non- 

compliance  with  the  statutory  requirement 

applicable to Independent Directors. 

The Board of Directors has considered 

the observation and taken the suitable 

steps for registering the Independent 

Directors of the Company with the 

'independent directors databank' 

maintained by Indian Institute of 

Corporate Affairs (“IICA”). 
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ANNEXURE B 

{DISCLOSURE UNDER THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL 

PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014} 

 
a) The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees; 

Total remuneration given to employees during the year ended 31/03/2025: Rs. 1,15,56,000 

Remuneration given to directors: 
 

S. No. Name of Director’s / KMP’s Remuneration as 
on 31/03/2025 

% Change 

1 Sanjeev Singal 
Managing Director and CEO 

49,80,000 No change 

2 Sanjay Dhir 
Whole-Time Director 

37,20,000 No change 

3. Mr. Kuldeep Singh 
Director 

9,96,000 No change 

4. Adarsh Sharma 
Chief Financial Officer 

13,50,000 No change 

5. Manju Bala 
Company Secretary & 
Compliance Officer 

3,28000 No change 

6. Akshay Saxena 
Company Secretary & 
Compliance Officer 

182000 No change 

 

 
b) % increase in remuneration of each Director, KMP and of % increase in median remuneration of 

employees 
% increase in remuneration of CMD: Nil 
% increase in remuneration of KMP: Nil 
% increase in remuneration of median: Nil 

 
c) Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company as on 31st March, 2025 is 65 

(including CMD). 
 

d) Justification of increase in managerial remuneration with that of increase in remuneration of other 
employees: There is no increase in the remuneration of Managing Director and Whole-Time Director 
during the year under review. The remuneration of the Managing Director and Whole-Time Director is 
revised by the Board generally only on the basis of the performance level of the Company, whereas 
employee salary is revised every year. The last revision of Managing Director and Whole-Time Director 
remuneration was made in the year NIL. Therefore, there is no increase made during the year 2024-25 
as decided by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board.  

 
e) Affirmation that remuneration is as per remuneration policy of the Company. 

 
I Sanjeev Singal, Managing Director of the company hereby affirm that all the employees including 
key managerial personal are paid remuneration as per the remuneration policy formulated by the 
company and approved by the Board. No employee is treated unfairly or denied any benefits as may 
be applicable and payable to him as per the company’s payment of remuneration policy.  

 

 
On behalf of the Board 

For Zenlabs Ethica Limited 

 
Date: 4th September 2025 Sd/- 

Place: Chandigarh Sanjeev Singal 
Managing Director 

DIN: 01154896 
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ANNEXURE – C 

 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

(As per Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 
Introduction 

 
Your company is one of the leading marketing companies, which is trading in wide range of branded drugs 
including GIT disorders, Anti-Diabetics, Anti-Hypertensive Drugs, Anti-Infective, Soaps & Anti-Bacterial 
Drugs, Nutraceuticals and more. Zenlabs Ethica Ltd corporate sustainability is demonstrated through (a) fair, 
transparent and ethical governance, (b) engagement with marginalized and vulnerable communities, (c) 
adherence to and respect for all human rights, (d) reduction of impact of its operations on the environment 
and (e) promotion of employee well-being and safety. 

 
In last three years, your company has optimized its business models, reshaped its portfolio, and expanded its 
footprint to strengthen its competitive position in key geographies. Throughout the pandemic, we have up 
scaled our capabilities to ensure widespread availability of quality medicines. Your Company is committed to 
investing in talent to nurture an agile, innovation, and excellence-focused culture. 

 
Management discussion and analysis report reflecting the performance and outlook includi ng the future 

prospects for the Company is presented herewith. 

 
 

(a) Industry Structure and development: 

 
The pharmaceutical manufacturing industry in India is witnessing steady and transformative 

growth, driven by rising healthcare needs, increased life expectancy, and greater demand for 

affordable, high-quality medicines both domestically and globally. India ranks among the top 

pharmaceutical producers in the world, known for its cost-effective manufacturing capabilities and 

strong presence in the global supply of generic medicines. There is an increasing focus on quality 

assurance, sustainable manufacturing practices, and innovation in formulation and drug delivery 

systems. 

 
The Company as a committed pharmaceutical manufacturing company, is well-positioned within this 

dynamic landscape. The company has invested in robust manufacturing infrastructure, quality 

systems, and R&D capabilities to meet the growing demand across various segments. 

 
Our Company manages continues to align its operations with these industry developments, focusing 

on quality, innovation, regulatory compliance, and market expansion to drive sustainable growth in 

the coming years. 

 
(b) Opportunities and Threats: 

 
The priorities of the industry are changing, concentrating more on re-organization of operations, 

development of new markets and marketing techniques, giving the organization's vision a global 

outlook and retaining and building upon customer relationships. Fragmented markets provide many 

opportunities for company to expand and increase market share. New markets allow company to 

expand their business and diversify their portfolio of products and services.  

 
Changes to government rules and regulations can negatively affect the company. Politics can increase 

company's risk factors, because governments can quickly change business rules that negatively affect 

company's business. Political Risk has a significant impact; Volatile costs mean company has to plan 

for scenarios where costs skyrocket. Cautious planning leads to development delays that can 

negatively affect the company. 
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Pricing of several antibiotics, vaccines, anti-cancer drugs and many other important drugs has 

reduced effective from 11th November, 2022. The NLEM focuses on aspects such as safety, efficacy, 

availability, and affordability. It comprises of 384 drugs across 27 categories. While the 2022 list has 

34 new drugs, 26 drugs from the 2015 list have been removed.  

(c) Segment wise or product-wise performance: 

 
The currently company is engaged in trading in a wide range of branded drugs including GIT 

disorders, Anti-Diabetics, Anti-Hypertensive Drugs, Anti-Infective, Soaps & Anti- Bacterial Drugs, 

Nutraceuticals and more. 

(d) Outlook: 

 
The focus for the forthcoming financial year for the Company will be continued delivery in 

progressing mode and grabbing the opportunities and trying to overcome challenges.  

 
(e) Risks and concerns: 

 
The Board of the Company has formed a risk management policy to frame, implement and monitor 

the risk management plan for the Company. The Board of Directors are responsible for reviewing the 

risk management plan and ensuring its effectiveness. Major risks identified by the businesses and 

functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. The Board 

of Directors has established a Risk Management Policy to design, implement, and monitor a 

comprehensive risk management framework for the Company. The Board is responsible for 

regularly reviewing this framework to ensure its effectiveness. Key risks identified across various 

business functions are proactively managed through structured mitigation strategies and 

continuous monitoring. 

 
In the opinion of Board, the rising costs and changing government policies and regulations are the 

key risk factors that may threaten the existence of the company.  

 
(f) Internal control systems and their adequacy: 

 
Internal Control and Audit is an important procedure and the Audit Committee of your Company 

reviews all the control measures on a periodic basis and recommends improvements, wherever 

appropriate. The internal control is designed to ensure that the financial and other records are 

reliable for preparing financial statements and other data and for maintaining accountability of 

assets. 

 
Your Company has put in place an adequate internal Control System to safeguard all assets and ensure 

operational excellence. The system also meticulously records all transaction details and ensures 

regulatory compliance. The reports are reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board. Wherever 

deemed necessary, internal control system are strengthened and corrective actions initiated.  

 
(g) Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance: 

 
During the year under review your Company has recorded a turnover of Rs. 5,142.25 Lakhs/ -. 

However, the company reported profit of Rs. 26.92 Lakhs/- net profit after tax as against previous 

year profit of Rs. 42.12 Lakhs/- 
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(h) Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including number 
of people employed: 

 
The relationship with the employees continues to be cordial. The Company recognizes the importance 

and contribution of its employees for its growth and development and constantly endeavors to train 

nurture and groom its people. The Company puts emphasis on attracting and retaining the right 

talent. The company prioritizes the training and development of employees across all levels and has 

implemented various methods and practices for Human Resource Development. Currently, the 

company employees 65 individuals. 

 
(i) Key Financial Ratios 

 
Ratio/Measure Methodology As on 31st 

March, 2025 
As on 31st 

March, 2024 

% 
Variance 

 

Current Ratio 
(times) 

Current assets/ Current liabilities 1.33 1.32 0.95% 

 

 

 
(Non-current borrowings + Current 
borrowings + Non- current Lease 
liabilities + Current lease)/ 

   

 

Debt – Equity 

Ratio (%)Note1 

1.22 1.47 -16.99% 

 

Debt Service 
Coverage 
Ratio 

EBITDA/ (Interest expense 
+Borrowings) 

1.07 1.22 -12.19% 

(Times) Note2 

 

Return on 
Equity (ROE) 
(%) Note 3 

Net Profit after tax/ Average 
Shareholder’s Equity 

2.62 4.25 -38.33% 

 

Inventory 
turnover ratio 
(Times) Note 4 

Revenue from operation/ 
Average 

Inventory 

4.10 5.01 -18.25% 

 

Trade 
receivables 
turnover 

Revenue from operation/ 

Average Trade Receivable 
2.55 2.76 -7.48% 

Ratio Note 5 

 

Trade payables 
turnover 
ratio 

Purchases of services and other 
expenses/ Average Trade Payables 

3.25 2.69 21.02% 

 

Net capital 
turnover ratio 
(Times) 

Revenue from operation/ 
Average 
Working Capital 

5.79 7.07 -18.02% 

 

Net profit 
ratio (%) Note 3 

Net Profit/ Revenue from operation 0.52% 0.72% -27.21% 
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Return on 
Capital 
employed Note 2 

Earning before interest and 
taxes/ Capital Employed 

5.85% 5.66% 3.31% 

Return on 
investment (%) 

 - 7.15% - 

 
 

Explanation for change in the ratio by more than 25%: The ratio has changed by more than 25% primarily due 
to a decline in net profit after tax. 

 
 
 
 
 

On behalf of the Board For 
Zenlabs Ethica Limited 

 
Date: 4th September,2025 
Place: Chandigarh Sd/- 

Sanjeev Singal 
Managing Director 

DIN: 01154896 
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N. KUMAR CHHABRA AND CO.  # 1081, SECTOR 27 B, 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS CHANDIGARH – 160 019 

PH: + 91 172 5088800 
e-mail: info@nkumarca.com 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
To the Members of 

Zenlabs Ethica Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Zenlabs Ethica Limited (the “Company”), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year 
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter 
referred to as the “financial statements”).  

 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us ,the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under 
Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, 
(“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at 31st March 2025, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flow and changes in equity 

for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

 
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) 
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

financial statements. 

 

Emphasis of Matters 

 
Attention is invited to Note 47 to the financial statements which states that “The balances of trade receivable, 
trade payable, advances given, and other financial and non-financial assets and liabilities are received in 
most of the cases. In few cases, such balances are subject to confirmation/reconciliation. Adjustments, if any, 
will be accounted for on confirmation/ reconciliation of the same, which in the opinion of the management 
will not have a material impact.” 

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the matters as stated in the Emphasis of Matters section 
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Key Audit Matters 

 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. 

 
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report. 

 
The Key Audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

Revenue recognition 

(Refer note 3 (k) and 28 to the financial 
Statements) 
Revenue is one of the key profit drivers and is 
therefore susceptible to misstatement. Cut-off is 
the key assertion insofar as revenue recognition 
is concerned, since an inappropriate cut-off can 
result in material misstatement of results for the 
year. 

 
 
 
 
 

We applied audit procedures with regard to revenue 
recognition included testing controls, automated and 
manual, around dispatches / deliveries, inventory 
reconciliations and circularization of receivable balances, 
substantive testing for cut-offs and analytical review 
procedures. 

 
Other Information 

 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 

 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 

 
When we read other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are 
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions, if 
required. 

 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (the “Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the financial position and financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified in 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section 133 of the Act.  

 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

 
In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
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the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  

 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

 
 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has an adequate internal financial 
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

 
 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as 
a going concern.

 
 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other  
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that  
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
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should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.  

 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

1. As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid 
remuneration to its Directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid 
down under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

 
2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 
A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.  

 

3. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for not complying with the 
requirement of audit trail as stated in (h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended). 

 
(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the 

Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account.  

 
(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 

Section 133 of the Act. 

 
(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2025 

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

 
(f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected 

therewith, is as stated in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and 
paragraph 3(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 (as amended). 

 
(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.  

 
(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
i. The Company did not have any pending litigations on its financial position as at 31st 

March 2025. 

 
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 

which there were any material foreseeable losses.  
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iii. There was a delay of 59 days in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.  

 
iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, as 

disclosed in note 53(k), no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by 
the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.  

 
(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, as 

disclosed in note 53(l), no funds have been received by the company from any 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 (c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused 
them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), 
as provided further under clause (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis- 
statement. 

v. The Company has not declared or paid dividends during the financial year 2024-25, 
hence, reporting under Rule 11(f) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not 
applicable. 

vi Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an 
accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts which doesn’t have a feature 
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility. 

 
As audit trail feature was not enabled for during the financial year 2023-24, reporting 
under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of 
audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable. 

 
 

 
for N Kumar Chhabra and Co.  

Chartered Accountants  

ICAI Firm Registration Number 000837N  

 
CA. Ashish Chhabra 

 

FCA, Partner  

Membership Number 507083 Place of Signature: Chandigarh 
UDIN: 25507083BMKNGT7070 Date: 12th May 2025 
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N. KUMAR CHHABRA AND CO.  # 1081, SECTOR 27 B, 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS CHANDIGARH – 160 019 

PH: + 91 172 5088800 
e-mail: info@nkumarca.com 

 
Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

 
Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report 
of even date to the members of Zenlabs Ethica Limited (‘the Company’) on the financial statements for the 
year ended 31st March 2025. We report that: 

 
(i) (a) (A) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 

Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company has maintained proper 
records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of 
property, plant and equipment. 

  
(B) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 

Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company doesn’t own any Intangible 
assets, hence, reporting under clause 3 (i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable.  

 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has physically verified all its 
property, plant and equipment. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable 
considering the size of the Company and nature of its property, plant and equipment. 
According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were 
noticed on such verification. 

 
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company doesn’t own any immovable 
property, hence, reporting under clause 3 (i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.  

 
(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including Right of use 

assets) during the year ended 31st March 2025. 

 
(e) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company 

examined by us, there are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for 
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 
1988 and rules made thereunder. 

(ii) (a) The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable 
intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
coverage and procedure of such verification by the Management is appropriate having regard 
to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more 
in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of 
inventories when compared with books of account. 

 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and as disclosed in the note 53, the 

Company has been sanctioned working capital limit in excess of ₹ 5 Crores on the basis of 
security of current assets, in aggregate, during the year from banks and financial institutions 
and the quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks or financial 
institutions are generally in agreement with the books of account of the Company.  

(iii) In respect of Investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in 
the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any 
other parties: 

 
(a) During the year, the Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans 

or stood guarantee or provided security to any other entity during the year and hence 
reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) is not applicable to the Company.  

 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures 

conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the investments made are, prima facie, not 
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  prejudicial to the interest of the Company. Further, the Company has not provided 
guarantees, given security, granted loans or advances in the nature of loans during the year. 

 
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, during the year, the Company has not given any 
loans or advances in the nature of loans to any party and hence reporting under clause 
3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.  

 
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures 

conducted by us, the Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to 
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the 
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures 

conducted by us, the Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to 
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the 
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.  

 
(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, during the year, the Company has not granted 
any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without 
specifying any terms or period of repayment and hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, during the year, the Company has not made investments, granted any 
loans, provided guarantee and security under Section 185 and 186 of the Act, to the extent 
applicable and hence reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.  

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no deposits or 
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 or any other 
relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 have been 
accepted by the Company and hence reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the maintenance of cost records has not 
been prescribed by the Central Government under Section 148 (1) of the Act for any of the activities 
of the Company and hence reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed 
statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, 
income tax, sales tax, custom duty, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory 
dues during the year with the appropriate authorities. No undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of the aforesaid statutory dues were outstanding as at the last day of the financial 
year for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.  

 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records, there are no statutory dues mentioned in clause vii (a) above 
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.  

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that 
have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) and hence reporting under clause 3(viii) of the order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

(ix) (a) Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given to us, 
we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other 
borrowings or in the repayment of interest thereon to the lender and hence reporting under 
clause 3(ix) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.  

 
(b) On the basis of information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been declared 

as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.  
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 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not taken any term loan during 
the year and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

 
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records, short term funds raised during the year by the Company have not 
been utilized for long term purposes. 

 
(e) Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given to us, 

the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the 
obligations of its subsidiaries and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

 
(f) Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given to us, 

during the year the Company has not raised any funds on the pledge of securities held in its 
subsidiaries and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of Initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instrument) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment, private placement of shares or fully or 

partly convertible debentures during the year or in the recent past and hence reporting under 
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xi) (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud 
by or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of 
such case by the management. 

 
(b) During the year, no report under sub section 12 of Section 143 of the Act has been filed in 

Form ADT-4 as prescribed in rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the 
Central Government. 

 
(c) Based on our audit procedure performed and according to the information and explanations 

given to us, no whistle blower complaints were received by the Company during the year and 
hence reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a 
Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, all the transactions with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 
and 188 of the Act and all the details have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by 
the applicable Accounting Standard. (Refer Note 41 to the financial statements).  

(xiv) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records, the Company has an adequate internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.  

 
(b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit issued to the Company 

during the year and till date, in determining nature, timing and extent of our audit procedure. 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of  the 
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions prescribed 
under Section 192 of the Act with directors or persons connected with them during the year.  
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(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

 
(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities 

without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as 
per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and in 
the immediately preceding financial year.  

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and hence 
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.  

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios 
disclosed in note 52 to the financial statements, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements 
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination 
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to 
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that the 
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when 
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is 
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is 
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will 
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.  

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not fulfil the criteria 
as specified under Section 135(1) of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, accordingly there is no requirement for the Company to spend 
any amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 
3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.  

(xxi) The Company doesn’t have any subsidiary, accordingly, the reporting under clause (xxi) is not 
applicable in respect of audit of financial statements of the Company.  

 
 

 
for N Kumar Chhabra and Co.  

Chartered Accountants  

ICAI Firm Registration Number 000837N  

 
CA. Ashish Chhabra 

 

FCA, Partner  

Membership Number 507083 Place of Signature: Chandigarh 
UDIN: 25507083BMKNGT7070 Date: 12th May 2025 
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N. KUMAR CHHABRA AND CO.  # 1081, SECTOR 27 B, 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS CHANDIGARH – 160 019 

PH: + 91 172 5088800 
e-mail: info@nkumarca.com 

 
Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Zenlabs Ethica Limited (“the 
Company”) as of 31st March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended on that date. 

 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.  

 
Auditors’ Responsibility 

 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, 
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls 
and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.  

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.  

 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

 
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 

assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error  
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  

 
Opinion 

 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as 
at 31st March, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.  

 

 
for N Kumar Chhabra and Co.  

Chartered Accountants  

ICAI Firm Registration Number 000837N  

 
CA. Ashish Chhabra 

 

FCA, Partner  

Membership Number 507083 Place of Signature: Chandigarh 
UDIN: 25507083BMKNGT7070 Date: 12th May 2025 
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025 

₹ in Lakhs 

Particulars Note As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

Assets    

Non-current assets    

Property, plant and equipment 4 164.29 213.69 

Right of use of assets 5 64.93 155.83 

Financial assets    

Investments 6 70.20 70.20 

Other financial assets 7 4.21 3.95 

Deferred tax assets (net) 8 23.77 27.58 

Total Non - Current Assets  327.40 471.25 

Current assets    

Inventories 9 1,309.89 1,199.50 

Financial assets    

Trade receivables 10 1,953.57 2,072.70 

Cash and cash equivalents 11 178.67 90.50 

Bank balances other than above 12 0.94 2.08 

Other financial assets 13 22.18 22.18 

Other current assets 14 269.57 167.63 

Total Current Assets  3,734.82 3,554.59 

    

Total Assets  4,062.22 4,025.84 

Equity and Liabilities    

Equity    

Equity share capital 15 651.00 651.00 

Other equity 16 391.50 361.30 

Total Equity  1,042.50 1,012.30 

Non-current liabilities    

Financial liabilities    

Borrowings 17 46.89 77.83 

Lease liabilities 18 9.94 81.51 

Other financial liabilities 19 108.76 108.76 

Provisions 20 41.86 43.32 

Total Non - Current Liabilities  207.45 311.42 

Current liabilities    

Financial liabilities    

Borrowings 21 1,140.84 1,221.28 

Lease liabilities 22 72.57 105.34 

Trade payables    

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 23 453.44 450.71 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 23 975.03 763.24 

Other financial liabilities 24 132.07 110.94 

Other current liabilities 25 28.56 36.57 

Provisions 26 7.22 3.52 

Current tax liabilities (net) 27 2.54 10.52 

Total Current Liabilities  2,812.27 2,702.12 

Total Liabilities  3,019.72 3,013.54 

Total Equity and Liabilities  4,062.22 4,025.84 

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1 to 54   

 
This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date. 

 

for N Kumar Chhabra and Co. for and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration Number 00837N 

 

 

 

CA. Ashish Chhabra Sanjeev Kumar Sanjay Dhir Manju Bala Adarsh Sharma 

FCA, Partner 

Membership Number 507083 

Managing Director cum 

Chief Executive Officer 

Whole Time Director Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 

DIN 02452461 Membership Number A67831 PAN: AMYPS7789J 

Place : Chandigarh DIN 01154896 

Date : 12th May, 2025 Place : Chandigarh 

UDIN: 25507083BMKNGT7070 Date : 12th May, 2025 
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2025 

₹ in Lakhs 

Particulars Note 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

    

Revenue from operations 28 5,142.25 5,856.31 

Other income 29 4.80 29.92 
    

Total Income  5,147.05 5,886.23 

    

Expenses    

Purchases of stock-in-trade 30 3,832.56 4,441.41 

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 31 (110.39) (62.64) 

Employee benefits expense 32 420.46 445.75 

Finance costs 33 92.55 83.37 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 34 126.35 129.44 

Other expenses 35 742.72 790.75 
    

Total Expenses  5,104.25 5,828.08 

    

Profit before tax  42.79 58.15 

    

Tax expense 36   

    

Current tax  12.28 20.54 

Short/ (Excess) tax provision for earlier years  0.88 0.05 

Deferred Tax  2.71 (4.56) 
    

Total tax expenses  15.87 16.03 

    

Profit for the year  26.92 42.12 

    

Other comprehensive income    

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss    

Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation  4.37 (0.23) 

Income tax relating to these items  (1.10) 0.06 
    

Total other comprehensive income/ (expense) for the year  3.27 (0.17) 

    

Total comprehensive income/ (expense) for the year  30.19 41.95 

    

Earning per equity share (nominal value of shares ₹ 10 each) in ₹ 37   

Basic  0.41 0.65 

Diluted  0.41 0.65 
    

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1 to 54   

 

This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date. 

 

for N Kumar Chhabra and Co. for and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration Number 00837N 

 

 

 

CA. Ashish Chhabra Sanjeev Kumar Sanjay Dhir Manju Bala Adarsh Sharma 

FCA, Partner 

Membership Number 507083 

Managing Director cum 

Chief Executive Officer 

Whole Time Director Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 

DIN 02452461 Membership Number A67831 PAN: AMYPS7789J 

Place : Chandigarh DIN 01154896 

Date : 12th May, 2025 Place : Chandigarh 

UDIN: 25507083BMKNGT7070 Date : 12th May, 2025 
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Statement of Change in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2025 

A. Equity share capital 

Particulars Number of shares ₹ in Lakhs 

   

Balance as on 1st April, 2023 6510015 651.00 

Changes in equity share capital during the year - - 

Issue of equity shares - - 
   

Balance at on 31st March, 2024 6510015 651.00 

   

Changes in equity share capital during the year - - 

Issue of equity shares - - 
   

Balance at on 31st March, 2025 6510015 651.00 

 

 

B. Other equity ₹ in Lakhs 

Particulars 
Reserve and Surplus 

Total 
Retained Earnings 

   

Balance as on 1st April, 2023 319.35 319.35 

Profit for the year 42.12 42.12 

Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans (Net of taxes) (0.17) (0.17) 

Any other change (to be specified) - - 
   

Balance at on 31st March, 2024 361.30 361.30 

   

Profit for the year 26.92 26.92 

Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans (Net of taxes) 3.27 3.27 

Any other change (to be specified) - - 
   

Balance at on 31st March, 2025 391.50 391.50 

   

 

This is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date. 

 

for N Kumar Chhabra and Co. for and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration Number 00837N 

 

 

 

CA. Ashish Chhabra Sanjeev Kumar Sanjay Dhir Manju Bala Adarsh Sharma 

FCA, Partner 

Membership Number 507083 

Managing Director cum 

Chief Executive Officer 

Whole Time Director Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 

DIN 02452461 Membership Number A67831 PAN: AMYPS7789J 

Place : Chandigarh DIN 01154896 

Date : 12th May, 2025 Place : Chandigarh 

UDIN: 25507083BMKNGT7070 Date : 12th May, 2025 
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Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March, 2025 

₹ in Lakhs 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

   

A. Cash flow from operating activities   

Profit before tax 42.79 58.15 

Adjustments for   

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 126.35 129.44 

Allowances for credit impaired - trade receivables 8.71 4.35 

Allowances for credit impaired - advance to suppliers - 0.83 

Finance cost 92.55 83.37 

Interest income (0.26) (5.85) 

Net (gain) / loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.71 - 

Net (gain) / loss on foreign currency transactions (0.54) (1.35) 

Operating profit before working changes in working capital 270.31 268.94 
   

Adjustments for changes in working capital   

(Increase)/Decrease inventories (110.39) (62.64) 

(Increase)/Decrease trade receivable 110.96 93.87 

Increase/(Decrease) trade payables 214.52 (1,327.90) 

Increase/(Decrease) provisions 6.61 6.39 

(Increase)/Decrease other financial and non-financial assets (101.05) 81.38 

Increase/(Decrease) other financial and non-financial liabilities 13.31 46.95 

Cash Generated from operations 404.27 (893.01) 

Income tax paid (21.14) (13.05) 
   

Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities (A) 383.13 (906.06) 

   

B. Cash flow from investing activities   

Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment including capital advances (1.76) (2.21) 

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 15.00 - 

Interest received 0.26 13.11 
   

Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (B) 13.50 10.90 

   

C. Cash flow from financing activities   

Proceeds from/ (repayment of) long-term borrowings (33.65) (31.10) 

Proceeds from/ (repayment of) short-term borrowings (77.73) 1,033.33 

Payment of lease liabilities (123.03) (123.03) 

Interest paid (74.05) (55.38) 
   

Net cash generated from financing activities (C) (308.46) 823.82 

   

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year (A+B+C) 88.17 (71.33) 
   

Add: Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 90.50 161.84 

   

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (refer Note 11) 178.67 90.50 
   

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements   

   

 

Notes to the Cash Flow Statement 

 

1. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect method” as set out in Ind AS-7 “Statement of Cash Flows” as specified in the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended). 

2. All the figures in brackets indicates cash outflow. 

3. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped wherever necessary. 
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Notes to the Cash Flow Statement (Contd.) 

 

4. Cash and cash equivalents included in the Statement of Cash Flows comprise the following 

₹ in Lakhs 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Cash on hand (including imprest) 178.67 90.50 
   

Balances with banks   

in current accounts - - 

in deposit accounts with original maturity upto 3 months - - 
   

Total 178.67 90.50 

 

 

 

This is the cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date. 

 

for N Kumar Chhabra and Co. for and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration Number 00837N 
 

 

 

CA. Ashish Chhabra Sanjeev Kumar Sanjay Dhir Manju Bala Adarsh Sharma 

FCA, Partner 

Membership Number 507083 

Managing Director cum 

Chief Executive Officer 

Whole Time Director Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 

DIN 02452461 Membership Number A67831 PAN: AMYPS7789J 

Place : Chandigarh DIN 01154896 

Date : 12th May, 2025 Place : Chandigarh 

UDIN: 25507083BMKNGT7070 Date : 12th May, 2025 
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Note 1 Corporate Information  

 

M/s Zenlabs Ethica Limited (the ‘Company’) is a public company domiciled and incorporated on 20th July 1993 [Corporate Identification Number (CIN) 

L74900CH1993PLC033112]. The shares of the Company are listed and traded on the BSE Limited in India. The Company deals in marketing and distribution of 

pharmaceutical products. 

 

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Company on 12th May, 2025. 

 

Note 2 Basis of Preparation  

 

a) Statement of compliance 

 

These financial statements are prepared on going concern basis following accrual system of accounting and comply with the Indian Accounting S tandards (Ind AS) 

notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and subsequent amendments thereto, under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 

“Act”). 

 

b) Functional and presentation currency 

 

The management has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates i.e., functional currency, to be ‘Indian Rupees’ 

[INR (₹)]. The financial statements are presented in INR (₹) which is Company’s functional and presentational currency.  

 

c) Basis of measurement 

 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items 

 

Items Measurement Basis 

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value 

 

e) Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

 

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 

reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. 

 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively. 

 

Judgements 

 

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is 

included in the following notes: 

 

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 

 

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ending 31st March, 2025 is 

included in the following notes: 

Note 3 (e) - measurement of useful lives and residual values to property, plant and equipment; 

Note 3 (n) - leases: whether an arrangement contains a lease; 

Note 3 (n) - lease classification; and 

Note 3 (h) - measurement of defined benefit plans; 

Note 3 (i), and 3 (j) - recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources. 

 

Note 3 Summary of Material Accounting Policies  

 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), 

read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

 

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (₹ Lakhs) which is the functional currency of the Company and all values are ed to the nearest crores, 

except where otherwise indicated. 

 

Entity specific disclosure of material accounting policies where Ind AS permits options is disclosed hereunder. 

 

The Company has assessed the materiality of the accounting policy information which involves exercising judgements and considering both qualitative and quantitative  

factors by taking into account not only the size and nature of the item or condition but also the characteristics of the transactions, events or conditions that could make the 

information more likely to impact the decisions of the users of the financial statements. 

 

Entity’s conclusion that an accounting policy is immaterial does not affect the disclosures requirements set out in the accounting standards. 

 

The Company adopted Ind AS from 1st April 2017. Accounting Policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued Accounting Standard is initially 

adopted or a revision to an existing Accounting Standard requires a change in the Accounting Policy hitherto adopted. 
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a) Current and non-current classification 

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current. 

 

Assets 

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

 It is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;

 It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

 It is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

 It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. 

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-current.

 

Liabilities 

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

 It is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

 It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

 It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

 The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that 

could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

 

Current liabilities include the current portion of financial liabilities some part of which may be noncurrent. All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

Operating cycle 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents. Based on the nature of operations and 

the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle being a 

period of 12 months for the purpose of classification of assets and liabilities as current and non-current. 

 

b) Fair value measurement 

 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 

date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either 

 

 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to/ by the Company. 

 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 

participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic 

benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use 

of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, 

based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole. 

 

Level 1 – Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

Level 2 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; 

Level 3 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable. 

 

c) Financial instruments 

 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

 

i. Financial assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction 

costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets, which are not valued at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on 

initial recognition. 

Classification and subsequent measurement 

Classification 

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the Company classifies financial assets in following categories: 

 

- Financial assets at amortised cost; 

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
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A financial asset being ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met 

- The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and 

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the 

principal amount outstanding. 

 

A financial asset being equity instrument is measured at FVTPL. 

 

All financial assets not classified are measured at amortised cost are measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a 

financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces 

an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

 

Subsequent measurement 

Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced 

by impairment losses, if any. Interest income and impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest income, are recognised in the 

statement of profit and loss. 

 

Derecognition 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the 

contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the 

Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset. Any gain or 

loss on derecognition is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

 

Impairment 

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. 

Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, 

expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition, 

in which case those financial assets are measured at lifetime ECL. The changes (incremental or reversal) in loss allowance computed using ECL model, is 

recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. 

 

Write-off 

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is 

generally the case when the Company determines that the counterparty does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to 

repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with 

the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due. 

 

ii. Financial liabilities 

 

Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial liabilities are 

initially measured at fair value minus, in the case of financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to 

the liability. 

 

Classification and subsequent measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost. 

 

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense are recognised in the statement of profit 

and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

 

Derecognition 

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. 

 

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this 

case, a new financial liability based on modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 

extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

 

iii. Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally 

enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and set tle the liabilities simultaneously. 

 

d) Cash and cash equivalents 

 

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the 

date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 
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e) Property, plant and equipment 

 

Recognition and measurement 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any. 

 

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade 

discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and 

removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. 

 

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to 

bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the sit e on which it is located. 

 

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of 

property, plant and equipment. 

Capital work-in-progress includes assets under construction and cost attributable to construction of assets not ready for use before the year end. 

Subsequent expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic 

benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for 

as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. 

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

 

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value 

i. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided as per guidance set out in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 on straight line basis. 

ii. Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting period end. 

 

f) Impairment of non-financial assets 

 

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing 

for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value or cash-generating 

unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. 

 

Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or 

groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable 

amount. 

 

g) Inventories 

 

The stock-in-trade and promotional items are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value in accordance with Accounting Standard. The stock-in-trade and 

promotional items costs are based on ‘first in first out’ method. Cost of inventories include all costs of purchase, cost and other cost incurred in bringing the 

inventories to their present condition and location. 

 

h) Employee benefits 

 

i. Short-term obligations 

 

All employee benefits payable/ available within twelve months of rendering the service such as salaries, wages and bonus etc., are classified as short-term 

employee benefits and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service. 

 

ii. Defined contribution plans 

 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or 

constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in the 

statement of profit and loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees. The Company makes specified contributions towards the 

following schemes: 

 

Employees’ provident fund 

The Company has a scheme of state insurance for its employees, registered with the regional state insurance commissioner. The Company’s contribution to the 

state insurance is charged to the statement of profit and loss every year. 

 

Employees’ provident fund 

All directly recruited employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined contribution plan. Both employee and 

employer make monthly contribution to the plan at a predetermined rate of employee’s basic salary and dearness allowance. These contributions to provident 

fund are administered by the provident fund commissioner. Employer’s Contribution to provident fund is expensed in the statement of profit and loss as and 

when incurred. 
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iii. Defined benefit plans 

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. 

 

Gratuity 

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the Gratuity Plan) covering all directly recruited eligible employees. In accordance with the 

payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Gratuity plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees on retirement, death, incapa citation or termination of 

employment. 

 

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary separately for each plan using the projected unit credit method, 

which recognises each year of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final 

obligation. 

 

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of obligation under 

defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity periods approximating to the terms 

of related obligations. 

 

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit, 

are recognised immediately in the balance sheet a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. 

 

Re-measurements are not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods. 

 

The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to 

measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in 

the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to 

defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

 

i) Provisions 

 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it i s probable that an outflow of resources 

embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

 

Provisions are measured at management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. If, the effect of the 

time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When 

discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

 

j) Contingent liabilities 

 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurre nce or non-occurrence of one or more 

uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of 

resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 

Information on contingent liabilities is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits  

is remote. 

 

k) Revenue recognition 

 

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company, and the revenue can be reliably measured regardless of 

when the payment is being made. Revenue excludes goods and service tax which are collected by the Company on behalf of the Government and deposited to the 

credit of respective Governments. 

 

Sale of goods 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized as revenue on the basis of customer contracts and the performance obligations contained therein. Revenue is 

recognised at a point in time when the control of goods or services is transferred to a customer. Control lies with the customer if the customer can independently  

determine the use of and consume the benefit derived from a product or service. Revenues from product deliveries are recognised at a point in time based on an 

overall assessment of the existence of a right to payment, the allocation of ownership rights, the transfer of significant ri sks and rewards and acceptance by the 

customer. Revenue from sales is based on the price in the sales contracts, net of Goods and Services Tax (GST). When a performance obligation is satisfied, 

Revenue is recognised with the amount of the transaction price that is allocated to that performance obligation. Historical experience, specific contractual terms 

and future expectations of sales returns are used to estimate and provide for damage or expiry claims. No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are 

made with the normal credit terms as per prevalent trade practice and credit policy followed by the Company. 

 

Interest income 

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be 

measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on, time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate 

that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

 

Export Incentives 

Export incentives under various schemes notified by the Government are recognised as and when the right to receive is established. 

 

Other non-operative income 

Other non-operative income is recognised when no significant uncertainty as to its determination or realisation exists. 
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Contract assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring 

goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration that is 

conditional. 

 

Trade receivables: A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before 

payment of the consideration is due). 

 

Contract liabilities: A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration from the 

customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liabili ty is recognized when the payment is 

received. 

 

l) Borrowing costs 

 

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs (for general and specific borrowings) directly  

attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time (qualifying assets) to get ready for their intended use are 

capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

 

m) Income tax 

 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in 

equity or in other comprehensive income. 

 

Current tax 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in 

respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if 

any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

 

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the 

asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously. 

 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial s tatements and the corresponding tax 

bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are 

generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible 

temporary differences can be utilised. 

 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient 

taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on 

tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end 

of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets and they are related to income taxes 

levied by the same tax authority. 

 

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or 

directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

 

n) Lease 

 

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

 

The Company as a lessee 

Right of use assets and lease liabilities 

 

The Company considers whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, t hat conveys the right to use an asset (the 

underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’. The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. To assess whether a 

contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the  

Company obtains substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the 

use of the asset. 

 

Recognition and initial measurement 

At lease commencement date, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, 

which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and 

remove the asset at the end of the lease (if any), and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received). 

 

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these 

options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised. 
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Subsequent measurement 

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of 

use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist. 

 

At lease commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest 

rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease 

liability are made up of fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) and variable payments based on an index or rate. Subsequent to initial 

measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is re-measured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there 

are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is re-measured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset. 

 

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the practical expedients. Instead of recognizing a right-of-use asset 

and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognized as an expense in standalone statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease 

term. 

 

Where the Company is the lessor 

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income  

from operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis as per the terms of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in 

negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental 

income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.  

 

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from 

lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so 

as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease. 

 

o) Earnings per share 

 

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity 

shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 

 

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) 

by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of 

all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares. 

 

p) Operating segments 

 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. Managing Director and Chief 

Financial Officer of the Company are the chief operating decision makers. 

 

q) Foreign currency transactions and translations 

 

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the 

date of the transaction. 

 

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are converted to functional currency using the closing rate. Non-monetary items denominated in 

a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transactions.  

 

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded, 

are recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise. 

 

Policies not specifically mentioned are consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. 

 

s) Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as 

issued from time to time. For the year ended 31st March, 2025, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the  

Company. 
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Particulars 

Gross Block Accumulated depreciation Net Block 

As at 

1s t April, 2024 

Additions/ 

Capitalised 

Sale/ 

Adjustments 

As at 

31st March, 2025 

As at 

1s t April, 2024 
For the year 

On Sale/ 

Adjustments 

As at 

31s t March, 2025 

As at 

31st March, 2025 

          

Machinery 1.07 - - 1.07 0.82 0.06 - 0.88 0.19 

Electrical equipment 21.14 - - 21.14 14.12 3.65 - 17.77 3.37 

Motor vehicles 343.29 - 31.97 311.32 143.00 30.10 16.26 156.84 154.49 

Furniture and fixture 21.75 - - 21.75 20.66 - - 20.66 1.09 

Office equipment 19.39 1.40 - 20.79 16.79 0.91 - 17.70 3.09 

Computer 18.08 0.37 - 18.45 15.64 0.74 - 16.38 2.07 
          

Total 424.72 1.76 31.97 394.52 211.03 35.46 16.26 230.23 164.29 

 

 

Particulars 

Gross Block Accumulated depreciation Net Block 

As at 

1s t April, 2023 

Additions/ 

Capitalised 

Sale/ 

Adjustments 

As at 

31st March, 2024 

As at 

1s t April, 2023 
For the year 

On Sale/ 

Adjustments 

As at 

31s t March, 2024 

As at 

31st March, 2024 

          

Machinery 1.07 - - 1.07 0.75 0.07 - 0.82 0.25 

Electrical equipment 21.14 - - 21.14 10.48 3.64 - 14.12 7.02 

Motor vehicles 343.29 - - 343.29 110.42 32.58 - 143.00 200.29 

Furniture and fixture 21.75 - - 21.75 20.66 - - 20.66 1.09 

Office equipment 19.39 - - 19.39 15.10 1.69 - 16.79 2.60 

Computer 15.87 2.21 - 18.08 15.08 0.56 - 15.64 2.44 
          

Total 422.51 2.21 - 424.72 172.49 38.54 - 211.03 213.69 

 

 

 

Particulars 

Gross Block Accumulated depreciation Net Block 

As at 

1s t April, 2024 

Additions/ 

Capitalised 

Sale/ 

Adjustments 

As at 

31st March, 2025 

As at 

1s t April, 2024 
For the year 

On Sale/ 

Adjustments 

As at 

31st March, 2025 

As at 

31st March, 2025 

          

Building 487.54 - - 487.54 331.71 90.89 - 422.61 64.93 

          

Total 487.54 - - 487.54 331.71 90.89 - 422.61 64.93 

 

 

Particulars 

Gross Block Accumulated depreciation Net Block 

As at 

1s t April, 2023 

Additions/ 

Capitalised 

Sale/ 

Adjustments 

As at 

31st March, 2024 

As at 

1s t April, 2023 
For the year 

On Sale/ 

Adjustments 

As at 

31st March, 2024 

As at 

31st March, 2024 

          

Building 493.36 - 5.82 487.54 240.82 90.89 - 331.71 155.83 
          

Total 493.36 - 5.82 487.54 240.82 90.89 - 331.71 155.83 

 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Investment in equity   

Investment in equity instruments 70.20 70.20 
   

Total 70.20 70.20 

 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Aggregate value of unquoted investments 70.20 70.20 
   

Total 70.20 70.20 

Note 4 Property, Plant and Equipment ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 5 Right of Use of Assets ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 6 Non-current Financial Assets - Investments ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 6A Aggregate Value of Investments ₹ in Lakhs 
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Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Security deposits 4.21 3.95 
   

Total 4.21 3.95 

 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Deferred tax liability arising on account of   

Difference between written down value of property, plant and equipment as per the books of accounts and 

income-tax act, 1961 

4.99 3.57 

Right of use assets and lease liabilities 4.42 9.00 

Accrued expenses deductible on payment 14.35 15.01 
   

Total 23.77 27.58 

 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Stock-in-trade 1,309.89 1,199.50 

   

Total 1,309.89 1,199.50 

 

All inventories have been hypothecated to secure borrowings of the Company refer note 22. 

 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 1,836.06 2,033.58 

Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 130.57 43.46 

 1,966.63 2,077.04 

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (13.06) (4.34) 
   

Total 1,953.57 2,072.70 

 

All book debts have been hypothecated to secure borrowings of the Company refer note 22. Also refer note 41 for ‘related parties’ details. 

Aging for trade receivables as at 31st March, 2025 is as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Aging for trade receivables as at 31st March, 2024 is as follows: 

Particulars 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 

       

Undispute d Tra de Rec e iva bles – c onside re d good 1,942.55 3.36 87.68 - - 2,033.58 

Undisputed trade receivables – which have significant 

increase in credit risk 

- - - 9.81 33.65 43.46 

Undisputed trade receivables – credit impaired - - - - - - 

Disputed trade receivables – considered good - - - - - - 

Disputed trade receivables – which have significant 

increase in credit risk 

- - - - - - 

Disputed trade receivables – credit impaired - - - - - - 

       

Note 7 Other Non-current Financial Assets ₹ in Lakhs 

Particulars 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 

       

Undisputed Trade Receivables – considered good 1,824.76 10.17 1.13 - - 1,836.06 

Undisputed trade receivables – which have significant 

increase in credit risk 

- - - 87.47 43.09 130.57 

Undisputed trade receivables – credit impaired - - - - - - 

Disputed trade receivables – considered good      - 

Disputed trade receivables – which have significant 

increase in credit risk 

- - - - - - 

Disputed trade receivables – credit impaired - - - - - - 
       

 

Note 8 Deferred Tax Assets (Net) ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 9 Inventories ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 10 Current Financial Assets - Trade Receivables ₹ in Lakhs 
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Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Cash on hand 178.67 90.50 
   

Total 178.67 90.50 

 

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprises following 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 178.67 90.50 
   

Total 178.67 90.50 

 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

In unpaid dividend accounts 0.94 2.08 
   

Total 0.94 2.08 

 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Amount recoverable 22.18 22.18 
   

Total 22.18 22.18 

 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Prepaid expenses 10.00 5.03 

Amount recoverable from   

Government authorities 3.00 3.00 

Others 137.61 137.62 

Advance to suppliers   

Considered good 111.50 14.51 

Considered doubtful 8.29 8.29 

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (0.83) (0.82) 
   

Total 269.57 167.63 

 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Authorised shares   

20000000 (March 31, 2024 - 20000000) equity shares of ₹ 10/- each with voting rights 2,000.00 2,000.00 

   

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid-up shares   

6510015 (March 31, 2024 - 6510015) equity shares of ₹ 10/- each with voting rights 651.00 651.00 
   

Total 651.00 651.00 

 

 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ₹ 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by 

the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting except in the case of interim dividend. In the event of 

liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion 

of their shareholding. 

Note 11 Cash and Cash Equivalents ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 12 Other Bank Balances ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 13 Other Current Financial Assets ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 14 Other Current Assets ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 15 Share Capital ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 15A Rights, Preference and Restrictions Attached to Equity Shares ₹ in Lakhs 



ZENLABS ETHICA LIMITED 

Corporate Identity Number L74900CH1993PLC033112 
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements the year ended March 31, 2025, Contd. 

- 60 - 

 

 

 

 

Note 15B Reconciliation of Number of Shares Outstanding at the beginning and end of the year  

 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

Number ₹ in Lakhs Number ₹ in Lakhs 

     

Opening balance 6510015 651.00 6510015 651.00 

Issued during the year - - - - 

Closing balance 6510015 651.00 6510015 651.00 
     

 

Note 15C The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares as at March 31, 2025 is set out as below*  

 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

Number Percentage Number Percentage 

     

Preet Remedies Limited 1730455 26.58% 1730455 26.58% 

Sanjeev Kumar 857574 13.17% 857574 13.17% 

Sanjay Dhir 857728 13.18% 857728 13.18% 
     

 

* The above information is furnished as per the shareholder’s register as at the year end. 

 

Note 15D Shareholding of Promoters  

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Number of shares   

Sanjeev Kumar 857574 857574 

Sanjay Dhir 857728 857728 

Preet Remedies Limited 1730455 1730455 

Himjyoti 1000 1000 

Harjinder Kaur 1000 1000 

Jasbir Singh - 1000 
   

% of total shares   

Sanjeev Kumar 13.17% 13.17% 

Sanjay Dhir 13.18% 13.18% 

Preet Remedies Limited 26.58% 26.58% 

Himjyoti 0.02% 0.02% 

Harjinder Kaur 0.02% 0.02% 

Jasbir Singh - 0.02% 
   

% Change during the year   

Sanjeev Kumar - - 

Sanjay Dhir - - 

Preet Remedies Limited - -18.78% 

Himjyoti - - 

Harjinder Kaur - - 

Jasbir Singh -100.00% - 
   

 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Retained earnings 391.50 361.30 
   

Total 391.50 361.30 

 

Nature and Purpose of the Reserve 

 

Retained Earnings: Retained earnings are the accumulated profits earned by the Company till date, less dividend paid to the shareholders. 

Note 16 Other Equity ₹ in Lakhs 
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Retained earnings 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Balance at the beginning of the year 361.30 319.35 

Profit for the year 30.19 41.95 
   

Balance at the end of the year 391.50 361.30 

 

 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

Non current Current Non current Current 

     

Secured     

Vehicle loan     

From banks     

HDFC Bank Limited 46.89 30.94 77.83 33.65 
     

Total 46.89 30.94 77.83 33.65 

 

Secured 

Vehicle loan 

From banks 

HDFC Bank Limited 

The loan of ₹ 33.00 Lakhs is taken during financial year 2020-21 at the rate 7.90% from HDFC Bank Limited against hypothecation of vehicle. The loan is 

payable in 60 equal instalments of ₹ 0.67 Lakhs per month including interest. The repayment of principal due within next 12 months is ₹ 2.63 Lakhs (previous 

year ₹ 7.48 Lakhs). 

 

The loan of ₹ 136.97 Lakhs is taken during financial year 2022-23 at the rate 7.90% from HDFC Bank Limited against hypothecation of vehicle. The loan is 

payable in 60 equal instalments of ₹ 2.77 Lakhs per month including interest. The repayment of principal due within next 12 months is ₹ 28.32 Lakhs (previous 

year ₹ 26.17 Lakhs). 

 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Lease liabilities 9.94 81.51 
   

Total 9.94 81.51 

 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Security deposits from customers 108.76 108.76 
   

Total 108.76 108.76 

 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Provisions for employee benefits   

Gratuity 41.86 43.32 
   

Total 41.86 43.32 

 

Disclosures as per IND AS 19 in respect of provision made towards various employee benefits are made in note 38 employee benefits expense. 

Note 16 Other Equity (Contd.) ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 17 Non-current Borrowing ₹ 

Note 18 Non-current Lease Liabilities ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 19 Other Non-current Financial Liabilities ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 20 Long-term Provisions ₹ 
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Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Secured   

Loan repayable on demand, from banks   

Cash Credit (against book debts and stock security) 1,044.90 1,122.63 
   

Unsecured Loan 65.00 65.00 
   

Current maturities of long-term borrowing 30.94 33.65 
   

Total 1,140.84 1,221.28 

 

Terms of repayment of current borrowings 

Loans repayable on demand are secured by hypothecation of stock-in-trade and book debts in addition to personal guarantee by director of the Company viz. , Mr. Sanjeev 

Kumar, Mr. Sanjay Dhir and Mrs. Himjyoti and Corporate Gaurantees of M/s Preet Remedies Limited and M/s Oasis Pharma and Phytomolecules Private Limited. The 

Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and interest during the year and previous year. 

 

Unsecured Loan 

The unsecured loan has been availed from the directors of the Company and is repayable on the demand. 

 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Lease liabilities 72.57 105.34 
   

Total 72.57 105.34 

 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 42) 453.44 450.71 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 975.03 763.24 
   

Total 1,428.47 1,213.95 

 

Aging for trade payable as at 31st March, 2025 is as follows 

Particulars 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 

      

Undisputed dues - MSE 54.13 - 399.31 - 453.44 

Undisputed dues - Others 975.03 - - - 975.03 

Disputed dues - MSE - - - - - 

Disputed dues - Others - - - - - 
      

 

Aging for trade payable as at 31st March, 2024 is as follows 

Particulars 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 

      

Undisputed dues - MSE 51.40 399.31 - - 450.71 

Undisputed dues - Others 763.24 - - - 763.24 

Disputed dues - MSE - - - - - 

Disputed dues - Others - - - - - 
      

 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Interest accrued but not on borrowings 0.44 0.63 

Unpaid dividend 0.94 1.83 

Other payables towards   

Services and others 130.69 108.48 
   

Total 132.07 110.94 

Note 21 Current Borrowings ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 22 Current Lease Liabilities ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 23 Trade Payables ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 24 Other Current Financial Liabilities ₹ in Lakhs 



ZENLABS ETHICA LIMITED 

Corporate Identity Number L74900CH1993PLC033112 
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements the year ended March 31, 2025, Contd. 

- 63 - 

 

 

 

 
 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Statutory dues 28.48 33.75 

Advance from customers 0.08 2.82 
   

Total 28.56 36.57 

 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Provision for employee benefits   

Gratuity 7.22 3.52 
   

Total 7.22 3.52 

 

Disclosures as per IND AS 19 in respect of provision made towards various employee benefits are made in note 38 employee benefits expense. 

 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Provision for income tax including interest thereon [Net of advance income tax / TDS] 2.54 10.52 
   

Total 2.54 10.52 

 

 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

   

Sale of stock-in-trade 5,142.25 5,856.31 
   

Total 5,142.25 5,856.31 

 

 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

   

Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost   

On fixed deposit with banks - 5.59 

On security deposits 0.26 0.26 

Net gain on account of foreign currency transactions 0.54 1.35 

Liabilities no longer required written-back 2.82 1.40 

Insurance claim 0.03 19.81 

Bad debts recovered 1.15 1.50 

Miscellaneous income - 0.01 
   

Total 4.80 29.92 

 

 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

   

Purchases of stock-in-trade 3,832.56 4,441.41 

   

Total 3,832.56 4,441.41 

Note 25 Other Current Liabilities ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 26 Short-term Provisions ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 27 Current Tax Liabilities (net) ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 28 Revenue from Operations ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 29 Other Income ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 30 Purchases of Stock-in-trade ₹ in Lakhs 
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Particulars 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

   

Opening stock   

Stock-in-trade 1,199.50 1,136.86 

Closing stock   

Stock-in-trade 1,309.89 1,199.50 

   

Total (110.39) (62.64) 

 

 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

   

Salary, wages, and bonus 414.40 439.90 

Contribution to welfare funds 3.54 3.61 

Staff welfare expenses 2.52 2.24 
   

Total 420.46 445.75 

 

Disclosures as per IND AS 19 in respect of provision made towards various employee benefits are made in note 38 employee benefits expense. 

 

 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

   

Interest expenses on   

Overdraft 61.45 38.28 

Term loan 7.41 9.98 

Lease liability 18.69 28.17 

OthersNote 3.26 3.57 

Other borrowing costs 1.74 3.37 
   

Total 92.55 83.37 

 

Note: The above interest includes provision for interest on income-tax under Income Tax Act, 1961 and interest on employee cost as ascertained by actuarial. 

 

 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

   

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 35.46 38.55 

Depreciation on right-of-use-assets 90.89 90.89 
   

Total 126.35 129.44 

 

 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

   

Advertisement expenses 7.11 44.43 

Auditor remuneration 4.00 4.00 

Business promotion expenses 23.45 88.77 

Freight and forwarding charges 198.76 202.52 

Communication expenses 2.45 2.19 

Discount and commission 208.79 116.53 

Custom duty 12.86 34.43 

Power and fuel 3.47 3.90 

Rate, fees and taxes 8.42 17.54 

Insurance expenses 11.19 8.85 

Legal and professional charges 18.88 5.11 

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.71 - 

Miscellaneous expenses 9.60 3.50 
   

Note 31 Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 32 Employee Benefits Expense ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 33 Finance Costs ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 34 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 35 Other Expenses ₹ in Lakhs 
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Particulars 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

   

Office expenses 40.88 31.46 

Printing and stationary 2.22 6.42 

Repair and maintenance expenses 3.16 5.82 

Watch and ward expenses 17.59 18.74 

Tour and travel expenses 160.47 190.25 

Donation - 1.11 

Allowances for credit impaired - trade receivables 8.71 4.35 

Allowances for credit impaired - advance to suppliers - 0.83 
   

Total 742.72 790.75 

 

 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

   

Payments to the Auditor (net of taxes, wherever applicable)   

Statutory audit fee 4.00 4.00 
   

Total 4.00 4.00 

 

 

a) Income tax expense recognised in Statement of profit and loss 

 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

   

Current tax   

In respect of the current year 12.28 20.54 

In respect of the previous year 0.88 0.05 
   

Deferred tax   

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 2.71 (4.56) 
   

Total 15.87 16.03 

 

b) Income tax on other comprehensive income 

 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

   

Arising on income and expenses recognised in other comprehensive income:   

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (1.10) 0.06 
   

Total (1.10) 0.06 

 

c) The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows 

 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

   

Profit before tax 42.79 58.15 

Income tax expense calculated at 25.168% (2023-24: 25.168%) 10.77 14.64 

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax expense   

Others 5.10 1.39 
   

Income-tax recognised in profit or loss 15.87 16.03 

   

Income tax rate   

Basic rate 22.000% 22.000% 

Surcharge - 10% (applied on basic rate) 2.200% 2.200% 

Cess - 4% (applied on basic plus surcharge) 0.968% 0.968% 

   

 25.168% 25.168% 

Note 35 Other Expenses (Contd.) ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 35A Auditor’s Remuneration ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 36 Income Tax Expense ₹ in Lakhs 
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Note 37 Earnings per share (EPS)  

 

Particulars Unit 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

    

Profit/ (loss) after tax attributable to equity shareholders ₹ in Lakhs 26.92 42.12 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year in number 6510015 6510015 

Nominal value per share ₹ 10.00 10.00 

Basic earnings per share ₹ 0.41 0.65 

Diluted earnings per share ₹ 0.41 0.65 
    

 

During the year, the Company has recognized the following amounts in the Profit and Loss Account 

Defined Contribution Plans 

Contribution to defined contribution plan i.e. Employer’s contribution to employee state insurance and Employer’s contribution to Provident fund for the year is 

charged to statement profit and loss. These amounts are shown as under: 

 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

   

Employer’s contribution to employee state insurance 0.33 0.33 

Employer’s contribution to provident fund 3.21 3.28 
   

 

Defined Benefit Plans 

Gratuity (non-funded) 

The Company provides gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuou s service for a period of 5 years are 

eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 

days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 8.98. 

 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

   

Change in present value of defined benefit obligation during the year   

Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period 46.84 40.22 

Interest Cost 3.11 3.10 

Current Service Cost 4.91 4.84 

Benefits Paid (1.41) (1.55) 

Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligation (4.37) 0.23 

Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 49.08 46.84 

Current portion 7.22 3.52 

Non-current portion 41.86 43.32 

Change in fair value of plan assets during the year   

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period - - 

Expected interest income - - 

Employer contribution 1.41 1.55 

Benefits Paid (1.41) (1.55) 

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss for the year on asset - - 

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period - - 

Net asset/(liability) recognised in the balance sheet   

Present value of obligation at the end 49.08 46.84 

Fair value of plan asset - - 

Unfunded Liability/provision in the balance sheet 49.08 46.84 

Expenses Recognised in the statement of profit or loss during the year   

Service cost 4.91 4.84 

Net interest cost 3.11 3.10 

Total expenses recognised in employee benefit expenses 8.02 7.94 

Recognised in other comprehensive income for the year   

Net cumulative unrecognised actuarial (gain)/loss opening - - 

Actuarial gain/ (loss) for the year of PBO 4.37 (0.23) 

Actuarial gain/ (loss) for the year on asset - - 

Unrecognised actuarial (gain)/loss at the end of the year 4.37 (0.23) 
   

Note 38 Employee Benefits Expense ₹ in Lakhs 



ZENLABS ETHICA LIMITED 

Corporate Identity Number L74900CH1993PLC033112 
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements the year ended March 31, 2025, Contd. 

- 67 - 

 

 

 

 
 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

   

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation   

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 7.19 3.52 

Year II 2.83 6.39 

Year III 3.07 2.44 

Year IV 3.22 2.63 

Year V 2.61 2.78 

Year VI to Year X 16.95 13.50 

10 Year onwards 13.21 15.58 

Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below   

(a) Impact of changes in discount rate   

Present value of obligation at the end of the period 49.08 46.84 

Impact due to increase of 1% (3.10) (3.22) 

Impact due to Decrease of 1% 3.48 3.64 

Change in present value of defined benefit obligation during the year   

(b) Impact of changes in salary increase   

Present value of obligation at the end of the period 49.08 46.84 

Impact due to increase of 1% 3.39 3.54 

Impact due to Decrease of 1% (3.06) (3.19) 

Sensitivities due to morality & withdrawal are not material and hence the impact of changes not calculated. 

Senilities as to rate inflation, rate of increase of pension in payment, rate of increase of pension before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable being a lump 

sum benefit on retirement. 

Actuarial assumptions   

Discount rate 6.75% 7.18% 

Future salary in increase 6.00% 6.00% 

Retirement age (years) 58 Years 58 Years 

Morality rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of IALM (2012-14) 100% of IALM (2012-14) 
   

 

Note  

i) The actuarial valuation of the present valuation of defined benefit obligation were carried out as at 31st March, 2025. The present value of defined benefit 

obligation and the related current service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method. 

ii) Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government Securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of obligation. 

iii) The salary escalation rate is arrived after taking into consideration the seniority, the promotion and other relevant factors, such, as, demand and supply in 

employment market. 

 

Description of Risk Exposures: 

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such company is exposed to various risks as follow 

A. Salary Increases: Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the 

liability. 

B. Investment Risk: If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch and actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last 

valuation date can impact the liability. 

C. Discount Rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability. 

D. Mortality & disability: Actual deaths and disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities. 

 

Note 39 Capital Management  

 

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. 

The primary objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to 

maximize shareholder value. 

 

Management assesses the Company’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure while avoiding excessive leverage. The Company 

manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. 

 

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital to shareholders, raise new debt or issue new shares. 

 

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio, which is calculated as interest-bearing debts divided by total capital (equity attributable to owners 

of the parent plus interest-bearing debts). 

Note 38 Employee Benefits Expense (Contd.) ₹ in Lakhs 
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Note 39 Capital Management (Contd.)  

 

₹ in Lakhs 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

   

Non-current borrowings (refer note 17) 46.89 77.83 

Non-current lease liabilities (refer note 18) 9.94 81.51 

Other financial liabilities (refer note 21 and 22) 1,213.41 1,326.62 

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 11) (178.67) (90.50) 

Net Debt 1,091.57 1,395.46 
   

Equity share capital (refer note 15) 651.00 651.00 

Other equity (refer note 16) 391.50 361.30 

Total Capital 1,042.50 1,012.30 

Capital and net debt 2,134.07 2,407.76 

Gearing ratio 0.51 0.58 

 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest 

bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements.  

 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024. 

 

Loan covenants 

 

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the Company is required to comply with certain financial covenants which include Debt Service Coverage Ratio 

(DSCR), Fixed Asset Coverage Ratio (FACR) etc. The Company has complied with these covenants throughout the reporting period. 

 

 

A. Financial instruments – by category and fair values hierarchy 

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. 

 

Categories of financial instruments As at 31st March, 2025 
Fair Value 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

     

Financial assets     

Non-current     

Investments 70.20 - - - 

Others 4.21 - - - 

Current     

Trade receivables 1,953.57 - - - 

Cash and bank balances 179.61 - - - 

Other financial assets 22.18 - - - 
     

Total 2,229.77 - - - 

Financial liabilities     

Non-current     

Borrowings 46.89 - - - 

Lease liabilities 9.94 - - - 

Current     

Borrowings 1,140.84 - - - 

Lease liabilities 72.57 - - - 

Trade payables 1,428.47 - - - 

Other financial liabilities 132.07 - - - 
     

Total 2,830.78 - - - 

Note 40 Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management ₹ in Lakhs 
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Categories of financial instruments As at 31st March, 2024 
Fair Value 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

     

Financial assets     

Non-current     

Investments 70.20 - - - 

Others 3.95 - - - 

Current     

Trade receivables 2,072.70 - - - 

Cash and bank balances 92.58 - - - 

Other financial assets 22.18 - - - 
     

Total 2,261.61 - - - 

     

Financial liabilities     

Non-current     

Borrowings 77.83 - - - 

Lease liabilities 81.51 - - - 

Current     

Borrowings 1,221.28 - - - 

Lease liabilities 105.34 - - - 

Trade payables 1,213.95 - - - 

Other financial liabilities 110.94 - - - 
     

Total 2,810.85 - - - 

 

B. Financial Risk Management 

 

The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company has exposure to the following risks 

arising from financial instruments: 

 

- Credit risk; 

- Liquidity risk; and 

- Market risk 

 

Credit risk 

 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a 

policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Company’s exposure and wherever 

appropriate, the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and spread amongst various counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by 

counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the management of the Company. Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk, 

principally consist of balance with banks, investments in debt instruments/ bonds, trade receivables, loans and advances and derivative financial instruments. None 

of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentrations of credit risks. 

 

Balances with banks were not past due or impaired as at the year end. In other financial assets that are not past dues and not impaired, there were no indication of 

default in repayment as at the year end. 

 

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the factors 

that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the country in which customers operate. 

 

The age analysis of trade receivables as of the balance sheet date have been considered from the due date and is as reflected below. 

₹ in Lakhs 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Less than 6 months 1,824.76 1,942.55 

6 months - 1 year 10.17 3.36 

1-2 years 1.13 87.68 

2-3 years 87.47 9.81 

More than 3 years 43.10 33.64 
   

Total 1,966.63 2,077.04 

 

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected loss allowance for financial assets based on historical credit loss experience and 

adjustments for forward looking information.  

Note 40 Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management (Contd.) ₹ in Lakhs 
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B. Financial Risk Management (Contd.) 

 

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance of financial assets (trade receivables and advances to suppliers): 

₹ In Lakhs 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Balance at beginning of the year 5.18 - 

Add: Provided during the year 8.71 5.18 

Less: Reversals of provision - - 

Less: Amounts written off - - 

Balance at the end of the year 13.89 5.18 
   

 

Liquidity risk 

 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering 

cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its 

liabilities when they are fallen due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s 

reputation. 

 

The Company believes that its liquidity position, including total cash and cash equivalent and bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent of ₹ 178.67 

Lakhs as at 31st March 2025 (Previous Year ₹ 90.50 Lakhs), and anticipated future internally generated funds from operations will enable it to meet its future 

known obligations in the ordinary course of business. However, if a liquidity needs were to arise, the Company believes it has access to financing arrangements, 

value of unencumbered assets, which should enable it to meet its ongoing capital, operating, and other liquidity requirements. The Company will continue to 

consider various borrowing or leasing options to maximize liquidity and supplement cash requirements as necessary. 

 

The table below provides amortized value of (discounted) cash flows towards non-derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity based on the remaining 

period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. 

 

₹ in Lakhs 

Particulars Carrying Amount On Demand Less than 1 year Above 1 years 

As at 31st March, 2025     

Interest bearing borrowings 1,205.24 1,044.90 103.51 56.83 

Unsecured loan 65.00 65.00 - - 

Trade payable 1,428.47 - 1,428.47 - 

Other financial liabilities 132.07 - 132.07 - 

Total 2,830.78 1,109.90 1,664.05 56.83 

As at 31st March, 2024     

Interest bearing borrowings 1,420.96 1,122.63 138.99 159.34 

Unsecured loan 65.00 65.00 - - 

Trade payable 1,213.95 - 1,213.95 - 

Other financial liabilities 110.94 - 110.94 - 

Total 2,810.85 1,187.63 1,463.88 159.34 

 

Market risk 

 

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair value or future cash flows arising out of change in the price of a financial instrument. These include change as 

a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity prices and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. 

Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits, foreign currency receivables, payables and loans 

and borrowings. 

 

The Company manages market risk through a risk management committee engaged in, inter alia, evaluation and identification of risk factors with the object of 

governing/ mitigating them according to Company’s objectives and declared policies in specific context of impact thereof on various segments of financial 

instruments (Fixed deposits). The Board provides oversight and reviews the Risk management policy on a quarterly basis. 

 

a) Interest rate risk 

 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. In order to 

balance the Company’s position with regards to interest income and interest expense and to manage the interest rate risk, treasury performs a comprehensive 

interest rate risk management. 

 

The Company is not exposed to significant interest rate risk as at the respective reporting dates. 

 

b) Foreign currency risk management 

 

Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is 

exposed to the effects of fluctuation in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows. Exposure arises primarily due to 

exchange rate fluctuations between the functional currency and other currencies from the Company’s operating, investing and financing activities. 
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B. Financial Risk Management (Contd.) 

 

Exposure to currency risk 

 

The summary of quantitative data about the Company’s exposure to currency risk, as expressed in Indian Rupees, as at 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024 

are as below: 

₹ in Lakhs 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Trade receivables 2.81 2.74 

   

Total 2.81 2.74 

 

Sensitivity analysis 

 

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against below currencies at 31st March would have affected the measurement of financial 

instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other 

variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.  

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2024 

     

Trade receivables 0.03 (0.03) 0.03 (0.03) 
     

 

c) Competition and price risk 

 

The Company faces competition from local competitors. Nevertheless, it believes that it has competitive advantage in terms of high quality products and by 

 

Note 41 Related Party Disclosures  

 

In accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard 24 (Ind AS 24) on related party disclosure, the related party including key management personnel, where control exists 

or where significant influence exists and with whom transactions have taken place, are mentioned below:  

 

Details of Related Parties 

 
Description of relationship Names of related parties 

 

 

 

 

 

Key Management Personnel (KMP) and Relatives of the Key Management Personnel 

with whom the Company has any transaction during the year 

 

Sanjeev Kumar Managing Director cum Chief Executive Officer 

Himjyoti Women Director 

Sanjay Dhir Whole Time Director 

Ashok Kumar Gupta Independent Director 

Anurag Malhotra Independent Director 

Kuldeep Singh Director 

Akshay Saxena Company Secretary (till 19-07-2024) 

Manju Bala Company Secretary (till 07-08-2024) 

Adarsh Sharma Chief Financial Officer 

 

 

Entities over which key management personnel/or Relatives of key management 

personnel are able to exercise significant influence with which the Company has any 

transactions during the year 

 

Preet Remedies Limited 

Quixotic Pharma Private Limited 

Ultra Chiron Pharmaceuticals Private Limited 

Oasis Pharma and Phytomolecules Private Limited 
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Note 41 Related Party Disclosures (contd.)  

 

Detail of related parties transactions 

₹ in Lakhs 

 

Particulars 

Key Management Personnel (KMP) and their 

relatives 

Entities where key management personnel & their 

relatives have significant influence 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

     

Remuneration     

Sanjeev Kumar 49.80 49.80 - - 

Sanjay Dhir 37.20 37.20 - - 

Kuldeep Singh 9.96 9.75 - - 

Adarsh Sharma 13.50 8.75 - - 

Akshay Saxena 1.82 4.00 - - 

Manju Bala 3.28 -   

     

Unsecured loan received     

Himjyoti - 50.00 - - 
     

Unsecured loan repaid     

Sanjay Dhir - 15.00 - - 
     

Rent Paid     

Sanjeev Kumar 24.00 24.00 - - 

Sanjay Dhir 36.00 36.00 - - 

Himjyoti 24.00 24.00 - - 

     

Purchase stock-in-trade     

Preet Remedies Limited - - 2,178.77 1,980.81 

Quixotic Pharma Private Limited - - 1,429.56 1,534.65 

Ultra Chiron Pharmaceuticals Private Limited - - 119.96 221.60 

Oasis Pharma and Phytomolecules Private Limited - - 222.22 691.63 
     

Sale of stock-in-trade     

Quixotic Pharma Private Limited - - 6.92 2.50 

Preet Remedies Limited - - 35.87 - 

Oasis Pharma and Phytomolecules Private Limited - - 75.30 123.03 

     

Security Deposits received     

Ultra Chiron Pharmaceuticals Private Limited - - - 15.00 
     

 

Note: All the transactions with related parties are reported gross of Goods and Service Tax, wherever applicable. 

 

Note 41 Related Party Disclosures (contd.)  

 

Balance outstanding at the year end 

₹ in Lakhs 

 

Particulars 

Key Management Personnel (KMP) and their 

relatives 

Entities where key management personnel & their 

relatives have significant influence 

As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

     

Remuneration payable     

Sanjeev Kumar 3.21 3.00 - - 

Sanjay Dhir 2.48 2.33 - - 

Manju Bala 0.40 - - - 

Kuldeep Singh 0.79 0.79 - - 

Adarsh Sharma 1.03 1.05 - - 

Akshay Saxena - 0.50 - - 
     

Unsecured loan     

Sanjay Dhir 15.00 15.00 - - 

Himjyoti 50.00 50.00 - - 
     

Rent payable     

Sanjay Dhir - 2.70 - - 

Sanjeev Kumar 1.80 - - - 
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Note 41 Related Party Disclosures (contd.)  

 

Balance outstanding at the year end 

₹ in Lakhs 

 

Particulars 

Key Management Personnel (KMP) and their 

relatives 

Entities where key management personnel & their 

relatives have significant influence 

As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

     

Trade payables     

Preet Remedies Limited - - 870.11 688.30 

Quixotic Pharma Private Limited - - 424.31 405.35 

Ultra Chiron Pharmaceuticals Private Limited - - - 2.86 

Oasis Pharma and Phytomolecules Private Limited - - - 1.60 
     

Amount recoverable     

Oasis Pharma and Phytomolecules Private Limited - - 109.62 - 
     

Security deposits from customer     

Ultra Chiron Pharmaceuticals Private Limited - - 15.00 15.00 
     

 

 

The Company has certain dues to suppliers (trade and capital) registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘MSMED Act’). The 

disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows: 

 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

   

a) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end 453.44 450.71 

b) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end - - 

c) Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the 

year 

- - 

d) Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, 

beyond the appointed day during the year 

- - 

e) Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the 

appointed day during the year 

- - 

f) Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments already made - - 

g) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years - - 
   

 

Note 43 Segment reporting  

 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) of the Company. 

Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company are the chief operating decision makers. The Company operates in a solitary business segment i.e., 

‘pharmaceuticals formulations only’, which primarily includes marketing and distribution of pharmaceutical products, hence does not have any reportable Segments as per 

Indian Accounting Standard 108 “Operating Segments”. 

 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Contingent liabilities   

Pending litigations   

Goods and services tax 6.79 - 
   

Note 42 Disclosures of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 44 Contingent Liabilities (to the extent not provided for) ₹ in Lakhs 
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Note 45 Disclosures regarding leases as per Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’  

Assets taken on operating lease 

The Company has leases for office building, warehouses and related facilities. With the exception of short-term leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, each lease 

is reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. Variable lease payments which do not depend on an index or a rate are excluded from the initial 

measurement of the lease liability and right of use assets. The Company classifies its right-of-use assets in a consistent manner to its property, plant and equipment.  

 

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024: ₹ in Lakhs 

 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

   

Current lease liabilities 72.57 105.34 
   

Non-current lease liabilities 9.94 81.51 
   

Total 82.51 186.85 

 

The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024 ₹ in Lakhs 

 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

   

Opening balance 186.85 287.53 
   

Additions / deletion/ adjustment - (5.82) 
   

Payment of lease liabilities and finance cost accrued during the period (104.34) (94.86) 
   

Closing balance 82.51 186.85 
   

 

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024 on an undiscounted basis: 

₹ in Lakhs 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

   

Less than one year 81.07 124.02 
   

One to five years 9.45 90.52 
   

More than five years - - 
   

Total 90.52 214.54 

 

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities 

as and when they fall due. 

 

 

Disaggregation revenue information 

 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

   

Sale of stock-in-trade 5,142.25 5,856.31 
   

Total 5,142.25 5,856.31 

   

Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated based on geography   

Home market 5,142.25 5,856.31 

Export - - 
   

Total 5,142.25 5,856.31 

Note 46 Disclosures on revenue pursuant to Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers ₹ in Lakhs 
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Timing of revenue recognition ₹ in Lakhs 

 

Particulars 
For the year ended 31st March, 2025 For the year ended 31st March, 2024 

At a point in time Over a period time At a point in time Over a period time 

     

Sale of stock-in-trade 5,142.25 - 5,856.31 - 
     

Total 5,142.25 - 5,856.31 - 

 

Contract balances ₹ in Lakhs 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

Trade receivables (Note 10) 1,966.63 2,077.04 

Less : Allowances for expected credit loss (13.06) (4.34) 

Trade receivables 1,953.57 2,072.70 

   

Contract liabilities - advances from customers (Note 25) 0.08 2.82 
   

 

Significant movement in the contract liabilities balances during the year 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

   

At the beginning of the reporting period 2.82 - 

Performance obligation satisfied in current year/ Amount received against contract liability (2.74) 2.82 

At the end of the reporting period 0.08 2.82 
   

 

Note 47  

 

The balances of trade receivable, trade payable, advances given, and other financial and non-financial assets and liabilities are received in most of the cases. In few cases, 

such balances are subject to confirmation/reconciliation. Adjustments, if any, will be accounted for on confirmation/reconciliation of the same, which in the opinion of the  

management will not have a material impact. 

 

 

Particulars Non-current borrowings Current borrowings Total 

    

As at 1st April, 2023 417.47 166.94 584.41 

    

Proceeds from non-current borrowings - - - 
    

Repayment of non-current borrowings (including current maturities) (net) (31.10) - (31.10) 

    

Recognition of lease liability (including current) (net) (100.68) - (100.68) 
    

Proceeds of current borrowings (net) - 1,033.33 1,033.33 
    

As at 31st March, 2024 285.69 1,200.27 1,485.96 

    

Proceeds from non-current borrowings - - - 
    

Repayment of non-current borrowings (including current maturities) (net) (33.65) - (33.65) 
    

Recognition of lease liability (including current) (net) (104.34) - (104.34) 
    

Proceeds of current borrowings (net) - (77.73) (77.73) 

    

As at 31st March, 2025 147.70 1,122.54 1,270.24 

 

Note 49 Audit Trail (Edit Log)  

 

The Company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which doesn’t have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility. 

Note 46 Disclosures on revenue pursuant to Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Contd.) ₹ in Lakhs 

Note 48 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities pursuant to Ind AS 7 - Cash flows ₹ in Lakhs 
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Note 50 Disclosure as per Ind AS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’  

 

The Company has reviewed the carrying amount of its tangible and intangible assets (being a cash generating unit) with its future present value of cash flows and there has 

been no indication of impairment of the carrying amount of the Company’s such Assets taking consideration into external and internal sources of information. 

 

Note 51 Event occurring after reporting date  

 

No adjusting or significant non-adjusting events have occurred between 31st March, 2025 and the date of authorisation of the Company’s financial statements. 

 

Note 52 Financial Ratios  

 

Ratio/Measure Methodology As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 % Variance 

     

Current Ratio (times) Current assets/ Current liabilities 1.33 1.32 0.95% 
     

Debt-equity ratio (in times) 
(Non current borrowings + Current borrowings + Non 

current Lease liabilities + Current lease)/ Total equity 

1.22 1.47 -16.99% 

     

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 

(Times) 

Earnings available for debt service@/ Debt Service 

(Interest and Lease Payments + Principal Repayments) 

1.07 1.22 -12.19% 

     

Return on Equity (ROE) 

(%)Note 1 

Net Profit after tax/ Average Shareholder’s Equity 2.62% 4.25% -38.33% 

     

Inventory turnover ratio 

(Times) 

Revenue from operation/ Average Inventory 4.10 5.01 -18.25% 

     

Trade receivables turnover 

ratio (Times) 

Revenue from operation/ Average Trade Receivable 2.55 2.76 -7.48% 

     

Trade payables turnover ratio 

(Times) 

Purchases of stock-in-trade and other expenses/ 

Average Trade Payables 

3.25 2.69 21.02% 

     

Net capital turnover ratio 

(Times) 

Revenue from operation/ Average Working Capital 5.79 7.07 -18.02% 

     

Net profit ratio (%)Note 1 Net Profit after tax/ Revenue from operations 0.52% 0.72% -27.21% 

     

Return on Capital employed 

(%) 

Earning before interest and taxes/ Capital Employed 

(Tangible net worth + Total debt) 

5.85% 5.66% 3.31% 

     

Return on investment (%)Note 2 Interest income/ Average Fixed deposit NA 7.15% NA 

     

@ Earnings available for debt service = Net profit after taxes + Depreciation + Finance costs - Profit on sale of property, plant and equipments 

Explanation for change in the ratio by more than 25% 

1. Due to decrease in net profit after tax. 

 

Note 53 Additional Regulatory Disclosures as per Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013  

 

a) The Company doesn’t have any immovable property and investment property. 

 

b) As per the Company’s accounting policy, Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use Assets) are carried at historical cost (less accumulated depreciation 

and impairment, if any), hence the revaluation related disclosures required as per Additional Regulatory Information of Schedule III (revised) to the Companies Act, is 

not applicable. 

 

c) The Company has not granted Loans or Advances in the nature of loan to any promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties (As per the Companies Act, 2013), 

which are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayments. 

 

d) No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 

1988) and the rules made thereunder.  

 

e) The Company has availed cash credit facility from the bank and have regularly filed returns or statements with the banks, same are in agreement with the books of 

account of the Company. 

 

f) The Company has adhered to debt repayment and interest service obligations on time. Wilful defaulter related disclosures required as per Additional Regulatory 

Information of Schedule III (revised) to the Companies Act, is not applicable. 
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Note 53 Additional Regulatory Disclosures as per Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 (Contd.)  

 

g) There are no transactions with the Companies whose name are struck off under Section 248 of The Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956 

during the year ended 31st March, 2025. 

 

h) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies (ROC) beyond the statutory period. 

 

i) The number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017, is 

not applicable. 

 

j) No scheme of arrangement has been approved by the competent authority in terms of Section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

k) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that 

the Intermediary shall: 

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or 

 

ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiary 

 

l) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in 

writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

 

ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiary 

 

m) The Company has not operated in any crypto currency or Virtual Currency transactions. 

 

n) During the year the Company has not disclosed or surrendered, any income other than the income recoginsed in the books of accounts in the tax assessments under 

Income Tax Act, 1961. 

 

Note 54  

 

The figures of the financial statements are represented as ₹ in lakhs upto two decimal places leaving the scope of rounding up variations. 

The figures of the previous year have been re-grouped / re-classified to render them comparable with the figures of the current year. 

 

In terms of our report attached 

 

for N Kumar Chhabra and Co. for and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration Number 00837N 

 

 

 

CA. Ashish Chhabra Sanjeev Kumar Sanjay Dhir Manju Bala Adarsh Sharma 

FCA, Partner 

Membership Number 507083 

Managing Director cum 

Chief Executive Officer 

Whole Time Director Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 

DIN 02452461 Membership Number A67831 PAN: AMYPS7789J 

Place : Chandigarh DIN 01154896 

Date : 12th May, 2025 Place : Chandigarh 
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ZENLABS ETHICA LIMITED 

Regd. Office: Plot No. 194-195, 3rd Floor, Industrial Area, Phase II 
Ram Darbar, Chandigarh-160002 
CIN: L74900CH1993PLC033112Tel 

No.0172-4651105 
Website: www.zenlabsethica.com 

Email ID: queries@zenlabsethica.com 

 
ATTENDANCE SLIP 

(To be presented at the entrance) 

 
Registered Folio No / DP ID No / Client ID No.:  

Name and Address of the Member (s)  

Joint Name(s)  

No. of Shares Held  

Name of the Proxy holder  

Signature of Member (s) / Proxy  

 

 
I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 32NDANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company held on 
Monday, the 29th September, 2025 at 12:00 P.M. at the registered office of the Company situated at Plot 
No. 194-195, 3rd Floor, Industrial Area, Phase II, Ram Darbar, Chandigarh-160002. 

 
Note: Members / Proxies are requested to bring the attendance slip with them. 

 

 

 

 
Electronic Voting Particulars: - 

 

 
EVSN (Electronic Voting Sequence 

Number) 

Default PAN/Sequence 

250829051 USE YOUR PAN 

 
 

Note: Please read the instructions as mentioned in the Notice of the 32nd Annual General Meeting. The 
E- Voting period starts on Friday, the 26th day of September, 2025 (9.00 a.m. IST) and ends on Sunday, 
the 28th day of September, 2025 (5.00 p.m. Indian Standard Time). The e-voting module shall be disabled 
by CDSL for voting thereafter. 

http://www.zenlabsethica.com/
mailto:queries@zenlabsethica.com
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Form No. MGT-11 

PROXY FORM 

(Pursuant to Section 105 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 19 (3) of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014) 

ZENLABS ETHICA LIMITED 

Regd. Office: Plot No.194-195, 3rd Floor, Industrial Area, Phase II, Ram Darbar, Chandigarh-160002 

CIN: L74900CH1993PLC033112 

Tel No.0172-4651105 
Website: www.zenlabsethica.com 

Email ID: queries@zenlabsethica.com 

 
Name of the member(s): ……….................................................................................................................. 

Registered Address: ……….......................................................................................................................... 

E. Mail Id: ............................................................. Folio No./Client Id...................................................DP 

ID.................................... 

 
I/We, being the member(s) holding of ...................................................................... shares of the above-named Company, 
hereby appoint 

1. Name: ....................................................................................................................... ............................ 

Address: .............................................................................................................................  .................. 

E. mail ID. ................. Signature: ........................................... or failing him………………………… 

 
2. Name: ....................................................................................................................... ......................... 

Address: .............................................................................................................................  ............... 

Email  ID:  .............................................. Signature ........................................................................ or failing him 
 

 
3. Name: ............................................................................................................................. ................... 

Address: .................................................................................................. .... ...................................... 

Email ID: .............................................. Signature: ........................................ 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 32nd Annual general meeting of the 
company, to be held on the Monday, 29th September, 2025 at 12:00 P.M at Plot No.194-195, 3rd Floor, Industrial Area, 
Phase II, Ram Darbar, Chandigarh-160002 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated 
below: 

 

No Resolutions 

Ordinary Business 

1 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025 together with the Report of the Board of Directors and the Statutory Auditors thereon. 

2 To re-appoint Mrs. Himjyoti (DIN: 02398927), who retires by rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. 

 
 
 

Signature of Shareholder 

Signature of Proxy holder(s) 

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered 
Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 

Affix 

Revenue 

Stamp 

http://www.zenlabsethica.com/
mailto:queries@zenlabsethica.com
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ZENLABS ETHICA LIMITED 

Corporate Identity Number L74900CH1993PLC033112 
 

 

ROUTE MAP TO REACH TO THE VENUE OF AGM 

 Zenlabs Ethica Limited, Plot No. 194-195, 3rd Floor, Industrial Area, Plot No. 194-195, 3rd Floor, Industrial Area 

 
Venue of AGM 

 
Google Map Link for the Venue: https://goo.gl/maps/kP6GdxDaFBEeXgE46 
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